
         

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

CITY OF NORTH PORT 
SARASOTA COUNTY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 11, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.westvillagesid.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
Chambers Room – City of North Port 

4970 City Hall Boulevard 
North Port, Florida 34286 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, PUBLIC HEARING 
& ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION 

April 11, 2024 
10:00 a.m. 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………...............................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Discussion Regarding Public Decorum at Board Meetings…………………………………………………...Page 2 

E. Comments from the Public on All Agenda Items 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 11, 2024 Contractor Prequalification for Construction and Maintenance Services 
Committee Meeting Minutes……………………………………………………………………………..Page 3 

2. March 14, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………………………..Page 5 

G. Attorney-Client Session Relative to Litigation…………………………………………………………….Page 12 

H. General District Matters 

1. Consider Resolution 2024-09 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Luczynski............Page 13 

2. Consider Resolution 2024-10 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Lewis…………...Page 15 

3. Consider Resolution 2024-11 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Masney………....Page 17 

4. Consider Resolution 2024-12 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Buckley…...........Page 19 

5. Receive Correspondence from Englewood Water District……………………………………………….Page 21 

I. Unit of Development 1 

1. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 7 between the District and the DeMoya, Inc. for Wellen 
Park Blvd. Roundabout and US 41/State Road 45 Improvement Project………………………………..Page 22 

2. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 8 between the District and the DeMoya, Inc. for Wellen 
Park Blvd. Roundabout and US 41/State Road 45 Improvement Project………………………………..Page 24 

3. Consider Approval of Fifth Amendment to Agreement between the District and Brightview Landscape 
Services, Inc. Regarding the Provision of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services…………….Page 26 

 

J. Unit of Development 3 

1. Presentation by GovRates Regarding Irrigation Water Rate Study………………………………………Page 30 

2. Public Hearing 

a. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………..Page 94 

b. Receive Public Comments on Setting Rate 

c. Consider Resolution 2024-13 – Adopting 2024 Irrigation Rate Study, 2024 Irrigation Rates and 
Related Matters……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 96 

K. Unit of Development 6 

1. Consider Approval of Agreement with AMC Contracting, Inc. for Irrigation Connection 
Infrastructure Construction Services……………………………………………………………………...Page 0 

 

 



 

L. Unit of Development 10 

1. Consider Approval of Supplemental Assessment Methodology…………………………………………Page 116 

2. Consider Resolution 2024-14 – Supplemental Assessment Resolution………………………………….Page 129 

M. Administrative Matters 

1. District Engineer 

2. District Attorney 

3. District Operations Manager 

4. District Manager 

N. Board Member Comments 

O. Adjourn 

 

 

 



Page 1



Page 2



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
CONTRACTOR PREQUALIFICATION FOR CONSTRUCTION AND  

MAINTENANCE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
MARCH 11, 2024 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The March 11, 2024 Evaluation Committee Meeting, was called to order at 11:20 a.m. in the Special District 
Services offices located at 12260 Everglow Drive, Venice, Florida 34293. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed the notice of West Villages Improvement District Notice of 
Evaluation Committee Meeting had been published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on March 1, 2024, as legally 
required. 
 
C. ROLL CALL 
 
The following Committee members were present: 
 
 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Operations Manager Ryan Johanneman  Special District Services, Inc. 
District Engineer  Giacomo Licari Dewberry Inc.  

 
Also present via telephone was Bennett Davenport of Kutak Rock LLP. 
 
The committee and staff generally discussed the pre-qualification process. 
The committee discussed the following prequalification package received and determined to recommend that 
the District Board award prequalification status as follows: 

 
A.M.C Contracting Inc.: 
 

(i)excavation/earthwork (ii) roadways (iii) stormwater management facilities (iv) water and sewer facilities 
irrigation (v) irrigation facilities (vi) landscape installation (vii) hardscape facilities (vii) streetlighting (viii)  
exotic vegetation Removal (ix) canal drainage maintenance (ix) Lake and Littoral Maintenance 
 
Bonding limit: $7000,000 
 
 
A MOTION was made by Ryan Johanneman, seconded by Giacomo Licari recommending the prequalification 
of A.M.C Contracting, Inc. Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION passed unanimously. 
 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to address, the Committee meeting was adjourned at 11:40 a.m.  There were no 
objections. 
 
 

Page 3



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 
 

Page 4



Page 1 of 7 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION 

MARCH 14, 2024 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The March 14, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District (“WVID” or the 
“District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Chambers Room of the City of North Port located at 
4970 City Hall Boulevard, North Port, Florida 34286. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on March 5, 2024. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it was in 
order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman John Luczynski Present in person 
Vice Chairman Steve Lewis Present in person 
Supervisor Tom Buckley Absent 
Supervisor Christine Masney Present in person 
Supervisor John Meisel Present via phone 

 
 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Operations Manager Ryan Johanneman Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Lindsay Whelan  Kutak Rock LLP 
District Engineer Giacomo Licari Dewberry 

 
Also present were Michelle Krizen and Andrew Karmeris, of Special District Services, Inc.; David Kelley 
of Respec Inc.; and Cynthia Wilhelm of Nabors Giblin Nickerson (via telephone). 
 
D. DISCUSSION REGARDING PUBLIC DECORUM AT BOARD MEETINGS 
 
Chairman Luczynski read the public decorum policy previously approved by the Board.   
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ALL AGENDA ITEMS 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  February 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Lewis noted, under the Unit of Development No. 6 agenda item where it states that he asked what a 
hydrologist was, that he actually asked what services a hydrologist would provide.    

Page 5



Page 2 of 7 
 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney approving the minutes of the February 
16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as amended to reflect the above revision. 
 
G. ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION RELATIVE TO GRAN PARADISO HOA IRRIGATION 
LITIGATION 
 
Ms. Whelan advised that the Attorney-Client Session was not needed at this time. 
 
H. GENERAL DISTRICT MATTERS 
 
There were no General District Matters to come before the Board. 
 
I. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1 
 
 1.  Review Contractor Prequalification Statements 
 
During the January meeting, the Board approved Resolution 2024-02, authorizing the Request For 
Proposals to Prequalify Contractors.  March 7th was the deadline for contractors to submit their applications 
for consideration.  On March 11th the Evaluation Committee, designated by the Board, evaluated the lone 
application that was received by AMC Contracting.  The Committee has reviewed and evaluated the 
submittal from AMC Contracting and is recommending designating AMC Contracting as a prequalified 
contractor for the following services: (i) excavation/earthwork, (ii) roadways, (iii) stormwater management 
facilities, (iv) water and sewer facilities, (v) irrigation facilities, (vi) landscape installation, (vii) hardscape 
facilities, (viii) streetlighting, (ix) exotic vegetation removal, (x) canal drainage maintenance, and (xii) lake 
and littoral maintenance. 
 

2.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-07 – Prequalifying Contractors 
 
Resolution No. 2024-07 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING THE ADDITIONAL 
PREQUALIFIED CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACTORS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-07, as presented.   
 
Chairman Luczynski asked that the RFP Committee continue with the prequalification process using the 
Contractor Prequalification Submittal Package approved by the Board in January to readvertise again so the 
District can have multiple landscape vendors prequalified.  
 
J. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 3 
 
 1.  Board Discussion Regarding Setting Rate Hearing 
 

Page 6



Page 3 of 7 
 

There was discussion to consider setting the date for a public hearing on revised irrigation rates to coincide 
with the April 11, 2024 Board meeting in order to hear a presentation from GovRates, Inc. regarding 
proposed irrigation rates and fees and to consider adoption of the irrigation rate recommendation from 
GovRates.   
 
Mr. Meisel commented that he did not recall any workshops between GovRates and the communities in the 
District that were previously agreed upon as part of the RFP process.  Mr. Luczynski responded that it was 
discussed during the February Board meeting that a Public Outreach Meeting was scheduled for March 21st.  
Mr. Meisel stated that the Public Outreach Meeting was a workshop for GovRates to present their final 
product and that in his opinion there was supposed to be three or four community outreach meetings before 
any rates were established.  Mr. Meisel went on to state that he felt it was premature to set the public hearing 
date.   
 
Chairman Luczynski responded that three or four meetings were never committed to and that GovRates’ 
contract requires them to conduct up to a certain amount of workshops, if  necessary, and that community 
presentations have been held at the October meeting and are upcoming at the March 21st workshop, and 
that GovRates was prepared to present its findings at the next Board meeting. Mr. Luczynski also stated 
that should next week’s meeting occur and there is a need to continue the irrigation public hearing, the 
hearing can be continued to a later date. But as of today the irrigation rate public hearing should be on the 
April agenda so that no one can say it was not properly advertised.  
 
Mr. Meisel asked why we need a motion from the Board to set a public hearing if a motion was not needed 
previously.  Chairman Luczynski responded it was because Mr. Meisel is constantly coordinating lawsuits 
against the District, causing extra caution for everything that WVID does.  
 
Mr. Meisel requested that District Counsel reach out to the Commission on Ethics for an opinion as to 
whether there is a conflict of interest that exists since there is active litigation by the master developer 
against the District and Gran Paradiso POA.  Mr. Luczynski responded that he was not aware of any legal 
action that the master developer had taken against either Gran Paradiso or the District, but he was aware 
that the master developer is attempting to intervene in Supervisor Meisel’s irrigation lawsuit.  Mr. Meisel 
stated there was litigation in that the master developer named the District as a respondent in their filings, 
which is, in essence, active litigation against the District and that this is the same reason why he had to 
resign from the Gran Paradiso Property Owners Association (GPPOA).  Mr. Luczynski responded that 
Supervisor Meisel has not followed the recommendation from the Commission on Ethics in that regard, as 
evidenced in his most recent email last week to the public.   
 
Ms. Whelan responded that the posture of the irrigation litigation that Mr. Meisel is referencing is that 
Thomas Ranch Intangibles and The Ranch Land Operations are attempting to insert themselves in the 
irrigation lawsuit that was filed against the District by the GPPOA as intervenors, and that their interests 
are aligned with the District and not adverse to the District.   
 
Supervisor Lewis asked what we would be requesting an opinion on, and what was the question.  Mr. Meisel 
responded that the question is- if there is active litigation against the District, which the District is a party 
to, is that a conflict of interest regardless of the fact that the master developer and the District are aligned 
with respect to the litigation.  He stated that he believes he had to resign from the GPPOA because there 
was active litigation between the GPPOA and the District.   
 
Mr. Luczynski responded that the reason Mr. Meisel had to resign was because he was on both sides of the 
equation, that he actively participated in the irrigation litigation in an adversarial capacity on behalf of the 
GPPOA and he was the one who coordinated the lawsuit against the District.   

Page 7



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
Mr. Meisel asked what was wrong with asking District Counsel to take an hour to send a request to the 
Commission on Ethics to get an opinion.  Mr. Luczynski asked that Ms. Whelan proceed with requesting 
an opinion even though he thought it was a waste of District money, time and effort, but to appease Mr. 
Meisel the District will do it. He stated that the Commission on Ethics was very clear that Mr. Meisel was 
adverse to the District when it ruled that Mr. Meisel had a conflict of interest by serving on the GPPOA 
Board and the WVID Board at the same time, and that is one of the reasons why the Commission made him 
resign.  Mr. Luczynski stated that Mr. Meisel has not followed the ruling in the ethics opinion, but WVID 
can ask for an ethics opinion on this issue now, even though the master developer and the District are 
aligned and not on opposite sides of irrigation litigation and adverse to each other.   
 
Supervisor Lewis asked what the turnaround time is for a response because he did not see stopping all 
business, pending a response on an opinion that he believed was frivolous to begin with.  Mr. Luczynski 
concurred with Mr. Lewis.  Ms. Whelan responded that it was probably a sixty (60) to ninety (90) day 
response time from past experience. It will take time for staff to prepare and submit a request to the 
Commission on Ethics, and Commission staff will then need to review the request and provide a 
recommended opinion which the Commission itself will need to approve at an upcoming meeting. There 
are also timing considerations regarding the Commission’s meeting schedule.   
 
Mr. Lewis asked if that suggests that the irrigation rate public hearing would be on hold for up to ninety 
(90) days.  Mr. Crosley stated that the Board already voted to approve rates during ongoing litigation when 
it voted 4-1 approving irrigation rates and fees back in April 2023.   
 
Mr. Luczynski stated that the Commission on Ethics previously ruled that the WVID Board’s actions in 
approving the rates and fees in April 2023 was legal and permissible and so this Commission on Ethics 
opinion request should not delay the irrigation rate public hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney setting the Irrigation Rate Public Hearing 
for April 11, 2024.  The MOTION carried on a vote of 3 to 1 with Mr. Meisel dissenting, citing his previous 
comments. 
 
K. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 6 
 
 1.  Discussion Regarding 10-Year Master Irrigation Plan 
 
This item was tabled. 
 
 2.  Master Irrigation Plan of Improvements Presentation 
 
Giacomo Licari, Ryan Johanneman and David Kelly presented the Master Irrigation Plan of Improvements.  
Mr. Crosley noted that the PowerPoint presentation would be posted on the District’s website.  
 
L. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10 
 
 1.  Consider Preliminary Supplemental Assessment Methodology 
 
Mr. Karmeris presented an overview of the Preliminary Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report 
for Unit 10.  Ms. Whelan asked Mr. Karmeris to confirm that the assessments were fairly and equitably 
allocated among the benefited lands.  Mr. Karmeris confirmed that they were.  
 

Page 8



Page 5 of 7 
 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously approving the 
Preliminary Supplemental Assessment Methodology, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-08 – Delegated Award Resolution 
 
Resolution No. 2024-08 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 

A RESOLUTION DELEGATING TO THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (THE "DISTRICT") 
THE AUTHORITY TO APPROVE THE SALE, ISSUANCE AND TERMS OF SALE OF 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE 
BONDS (UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10), SERIES 2024 (ASSESSMENT AREA ONE), 
AS A SINGLE SERIES OF BONDS UNDER THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE (THE 
"SERIES 2024 BONDS") IN ORDER TO FINANCE THE ASSESSMENT AREA ONE 
PROJECT; ESTABLISHING THE PARAMETERS FOR THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, 
INTEREST RATES, MATURITY DATES, REDEMPTION PROVISIONS AND OTHER 
DETAILS THEREOF; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE 
CHAIRMAN TO ACCEPT THE BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT FOR THE SERIES 2024 
BONDS; APPROVING A NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE SERIES 2024 BONDS TO THE 
UNDERWRITER; APPROVING THE FORMS OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE 
AND FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY THEREOF BY CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE 
DISTRICT;  APPOINTING A TRUSTEE, PAYING AGENT AND BOND REGISTRAR 
FOR THE SERIES 2024 BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF THE SERIES 2024 
BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THE 
PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM AND LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM RELATING TO THE SERIES 2024 BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM 
OF THE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE SERIES 2024 
BONDS; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT TO TAKE ALL 
ACTIONS REQUIRED AND TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER ALL DOCUMENTS, 
INSTRUMENTS AND CERTIFICATES NECESSARY IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE SERIES 2024 BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
VICE CHAIRMAN AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES TO ACT IN THE STEAD OF THE 
CHAIRMAN OR THE SECRETARY, AS THE CASE MAY BE; SPECIFYING THE 
APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE SERIES 2024 BONDS; AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS AND ENTER INTO 
ALL AGREEMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE ASSESSMENT AREA ONE PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

Ms. Wilhelm presented an overview of Resolution 2024-08. 
 
Mr. Meisel asked if the maximum amount of the bond is $21,000,000, how that covers the allocation for 
the master development. Mr. Lewis responded that the amount of the bonds is not intended to pay 100% of 
the costs.  Mr. Lewis also noted that $21,000,000 was the maximum and not likely the final amount.  Mr. 
Lewis then stated that the Assessment Methodology Report, previously approved during the meeting, 
addresses that the preliminary anticipated par amount of the bonds is just under $19,000,0000, which will 
vary based on the ultimate pricing of the bond.  In any event, the amount of construction costs ultimately 

Page 9



Page 6 of 7 
 

financed will be lower than the construction costs incurred to construct these public infrastructure facilities, 
because there is no present intention by the Board to finance all of the public infrastructure costs.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-08, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Ancillary Financing Agreements 
 

a. Acquisition Agreement 
b. Collateral Assignment Agreement 
c. Completion Agreement 
d. True-Up Agreement 

 
Ms. Whelan explained these documents were standard forms of financing-related agreements and that they 
are in draft form.  She indicated that they are the same forms as have been reviewed and approved by the 
Board previously for other financings. The highlighted information will be inserted upon the final pricing 
of the bonds.  Staff recommended that these agreements be approved in substantial form. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously approving the 
Acquisition Agreement, Collateral Assignment Agreement, Completion Agreement, and True-Up 
Agreement for Unit No. 10, in substantial form.  
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
 1.  District Engineer 
 
Mr. Licari reported that the Playmore Road resurfacing project would begin April 1, 2024.   
 
 2.  District Attorney 
 
Ms. Whelan reported, regarding the assessment litigation, the motion for summary judgment that the 
District filed was denied pending the plaintiff being afforded additional time for discovery, which they 
argued was needed.  She indicated that once the discovery process has been completed, the District will 
likely re-file its motion. 
 
In addition, regarding the urbanization litigation, the insurance company confirmed that the District has 
insurance coverage in the amount of $100,000 to assist with the defense of that matter.   
 
 3.  District Operations’ Manager 
 
Mr. Johanneman reported that repair work to the Grand Paradiso guardhouse and monuments had begun on 
March 11th with the hope that it is completed and ready for inspection by District staff the week of March 
18. 
 
 4.  District Manager 
 
Mr. Crosley noted that the next meeting was scheduled for April 11, 2024. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Page 10



Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Mr. Lewis thanked Bond Counsel, Cynthia Wilhelm, and the Assessment Methodology Consultant, Andrew 
Karmeris, for their efforts on the Unit No. 10 bond documents. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
10:54 a.m. on a MOTION made by Ms. Masney, seconded by Mr. Lewis and passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 11



Page 12



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF A BOARD MEMBER; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has previously adopted 
Resolution 2016-08 (the “Resolution”) providing for the defense and indemnification of Board 
members pursuant to the terms thereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Supervisor John Luczynski (the “Supervisor”) received notice on February 
5, 2024 of an administrative proceeding initiated against him on or about January 29, 2024 that 
was filed with an agency of the State of Florida (the “Proceeding”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the complaint relative to the Proceeding (the “Complaint”) relates to a vote 
in favor of modifying the District’s enabling legislation and other matters ancillary thereto which 
are within the scope of the Supervisor’s office; and 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Resolution, within fourteen (14) calendar days after 
actual receipt of notice of the Proceeding, the Supervisor has provided the District with a copy of 
the Complaint and a written request for defense and indemnification by the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Supervisor has denied the allegations and conclusions in the Complaint. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. Pursuant to the Resolution and in reliance of the recitals above, the Board 
hereby determines that the District shall provide defense and indemnification to the Supervisor in 
relation to the Proceeding, subject to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The District shall retain the services of Andrew Salzman and the firm of 
Unice Salzman Jensen, P.A. as legal counsel for the Supervisor, subject to approval of the terms 
and conditions of a Fee Agreement as negotiated and finalized by District Counsel. Following 
approval by District Counsel, the Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee 
Agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached, District Counsel shall negotiate and finalize a Fee 
Agreement with an alternative legal counsel with significant experience in the subject matter at 
issue. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee Agreement with the alternative 

Page 13



2 
 

legal counsel. The provision of legal counsel by the District to the Supervisor shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Resolution.  
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
       DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
   
  
 
 

Page 14



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF A BOARD MEMBER; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has previously adopted 
Resolution 2016-08 (the “Resolution”) providing for the defense and indemnification of Board 
members pursuant to the terms thereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Supervisor Steve Lewis (the “Supervisor”) has received notice on February 
5, 2024 of an administrative proceeding initiated against him on or about January 29, 2024 that 
was filed with an agency of the State of Florida (the “Proceeding”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the complaint relative to the Proceeding (the “Complaint”) relates to a vote 
in favor of modifying the District’s enabling legislation and other matters ancillary thereto which 
are within the scope of the Supervisor’s office; and 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Resolution, within fourteen (14) calendar days after 
actual receipt of notice of the Proceeding, the Supervisor has provided the District with a copy of 
the Complaint and a written request for defense and indemnification by the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Supervisor has denied the allegations and conclusions in the Complaint. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. Pursuant to the Resolution and in reliance of the recitals above, the Board 
hereby determines that the District shall provide defense and indemnification to the Supervisor in 
relation to the Proceeding, subject to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The District shall retain the services of Andrew Salzman and the firm of 
Unice Salzman Jensen, P.A. as legal counsel for the Supervisor, subject to approval of the terms 
and conditions of a Fee Agreement as negotiated and finalized by District Counsel. Following 
approval by District Counsel, the Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee 
Agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached, District Counsel shall negotiate and finalize a Fee 
Agreement with an alternative legal counsel with significant experience in the subject matter at 
issue. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee Agreement with the alternative 

Page 15



2 
 

legal counsel. The provision of legal counsel by the District to the Supervisor shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Resolution.  
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
       DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
   
  
 
 

Page 16



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF A BOARD MEMBER; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has previously adopted 
Resolution 2016-08 (the “Resolution”) providing for the defense and indemnification of Board 
members pursuant to the terms thereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Supervisor Christine Masney (the “Supervisor”) has received notice on 
February 5, 2024 of an administrative proceeding initiated against her on or about January 29, 
2024 that was filed with an agency of the State of Florida (the “Proceeding”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the complaint relative to the Proceeding (the “Complaint”) relates to a vote 
in favor of modifying the District’s enabling legislation and other matters ancillary thereto which 
are within the scope of the Supervisor’s office; and 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Resolution, within fourteen (14) calendar days after 
actual receipt of notice of the Proceeding, the Supervisor has provided the District with a copy of 
the Complaint and a written request for defense and indemnification by the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Supervisor has denied the allegations and conclusions in the Complaint. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. Pursuant to the Resolution and in reliance of the recitals above, the Board 
hereby determines that the District shall provide defense and indemnification to the Supervisor in 
relation to the Proceeding, subject to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The District shall retain the services of Andrew Salzman and the firm of 
Unice Salzman Jensen, P.A. as legal counsel for the Supervisor, subject to approval of the terms 
and conditions of a Fee Agreement as negotiated and finalized by District Counsel. Following 
approval by District Counsel, the Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee 
Agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached, District Counsel shall negotiate and finalize a Fee 
Agreement with an alternative legal counsel with significant experience in the subject matter at 
issue. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee Agreement with the alternative 

Page 17



2 
 

legal counsel. The provision of legal counsel by the District to the Supervisor shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Resolution.  
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
       DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
   
  
 
 

Page 18



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-12 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF A BOARD MEMBER; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has previously adopted 
Resolution 2016-08 (the “Resolution”) providing for the defense and indemnification of Board 
members pursuant to the terms thereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Supervisor Thomas Buckley (the “Supervisor”) has received notice on 
February 5, 2024 of an administrative proceeding initiated against him on or about January 29, 
2024 that was filed with an agency of the State of Florida (the “Proceeding”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the complaint relative to the Proceeding (the “Complaint”) relates to a vote 
in favor of modifying the District’s enabling legislation and other matters ancillary thereto which 
are within the scope of the Supervisor’s office; and 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Resolution, within fourteen (14) calendar days after 
actual receipt of notice of the Proceeding, the Supervisor has provided the District with a copy of 
the Complaint and a written request for defense and indemnification by the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Supervisor has denied the allegations and conclusions in the Complaint. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. Pursuant to the Resolution and in reliance of the recitals above, the Board 
hereby determines that the District shall provide defense and indemnification to the Supervisor in 
relation to the Proceeding, subject to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The District shall retain the services of Andrew Salzman and the firm of 
Unice Salzman Jensen, P.A. as legal counsel for the Supervisor, subject to approval of the terms 
and conditions of a Fee Agreement as negotiated and finalized by District Counsel. Following 
approval by District Counsel, the Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee 
Agreement. If an agreement cannot be reached, District Counsel shall negotiate and finalize a Fee 
Agreement with an alternative legal counsel with significant experience in the subject matter at 
issue. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to execute the Fee Agreement with the alternative 

Page 19



2 
 

legal counsel. The provision of legal counsel by the District to the Supervisor shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Resolution.  
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
       DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
   
  
 
 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



FIFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC. 

REGARDING THE PROVISION   OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
This Fifth Amendment (“Fifth Amendment”) is made and entered into as of this 

___ day of April 2024 by and between: 
 

West Villages Improvement District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 189, Florida Statutes, and whose 
address is 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410  (“District”); 
and 
 

Brightview Landscape Services, Inc., a foreign corporation, whose address 
is 24151 Ventura Boulevard, Calabasas, California 91302 (hereinafter 
“Contractor” and, together with the District, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing 

pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”) for the purpose of 
planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure and 
providing certain public services; and 

 
WHEREAS, District and Contractor entered into that certain Agreement Regarding the 

Provision of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services, dated September 27, 2021 
(“Agreement”) as amended by that First Amendment to Agreement Regarding the Provision of 
Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services, dated October 31, 2022, and that Second 
Amendment to Agreement Regarding the Provision of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance 
Services, dated June 27, 2023, and that Third Amendment to Agreement Regarding the Provision 
of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services, dated October 1, 2023, and that Fourth 
Amendment to Agreement Regarding the Provision of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance 
Services, dated November 11, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Agreement provides that the Parties may amend the 
Agreement when such amendment is in writing and authorized by both Parties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to amend the Agreement to add additional services as 

set forth in more detail below; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants 
of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the District and 
Contractor agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and 
correct and are incorporated as a material part of this Fifth Amendment. 

Page 26



 
 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT. 
 

A. Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby amended reflect the addition of new services 
areas described in Exhibit A, attached hereto (hereinafter the “New Service 
Areas”).  As compensation for providing the services contemplated in the 
Agreement, as amended, to the New Services Areas, the District shall pay One 
Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Sixty Dollars and Zero Cents ($156,060.00) per year 
to the Contractor.  

 
 SECTION 3. AFFIRMATION OF THE AGREEMENT.  The Agreement is hereby affirmed 
and continues to constitute a valid and binding agreement between the Parties. Except as described 
in Section 2 of this Fifth Amendment, nothing herein shall modify the rights and obligations of the 
Parties under the Agreement. All of the remaining provisions, including, but not limited to, the 
engagement of services, indemnification, and sovereign immunity provisions, remain in full effect 
and fully enforceable. 
 
 SECTION 4. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of  this  Fifth Amendment  has  been  duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, both Parties have complied with all 
the requirements of law, and both the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the 
terms and provisions of this Fifth Amendment. 
 

SECTION 5. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  This Fifth Amendment may be executed 
in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; 
however, all such counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 27



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Fifth Amendment on the day 
and year first written above. 
 
Attest: WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
Witness:              BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, 

INC. 
 
 

__________________________________        ____________________________________ 
 

 By:   
Its:     

 
 
 
Exhibit A: Landscape Maintenance Map 

Page 28



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Landscape Maintenance Map 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



April 4, 2024 

IRRIGATION WATER 
RATE STUDY

GovRates 
www.govrates.com 

Page 30



  1 of 2  
 

GovRates 
Utility, Financial, Rate, and Management

 Consultants for Governments 
www.govrates.com 

April 4, 2024

Board of Supervisors
West Villages Improvement District
2501 Burns Road, Suite A
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Subject: Irrigation Water Rate Study

GovRates, Inc. ("GovRates") has completed our review of the irrigation water rates for the
irrigation system (the "System") for the West Villages Improvement District (the "District"), and
has prepared this report which summarizes our analyses, findings, and recommendations. As
discussed in this report, there are certain unknown factors at this time which limit our ability to
provide rate recommendations beyond the initial year. The District should regularly review its
irrigation water rates to ensure that the System is on a path to self sustainability and that the
rates remain equitable.

Communication activities for this study have included:

 Irrigation water rate study presentation to the Board of Supervisors (the "Board") and public
on October 12, 2023. During this presentation, most of the study issues were communicated.
The Board provided direction for billing irrigation water use for common areas and for
sending representatives to discuss continued deficit funding with the developer.

 A public outreachmeeting onMarch 21, 2024. During this meeting, the rate study issues were
communicated and preliminary proposed irrigation water rates were presented.

 Two Zoom (virtual) meetings with communities on April 2, 2024 and April 3, 2024.

This rate study is the first formal rate review since September 2018. Developing a financial and
rate plan for the System involves multiple considerations:

 The financial and rate plan should consider utility best management practices and should
promote financial sustainability and creditworthiness. Conforming with utility best
management practices enables the utility to accomplish its mission while keeping rates
affordable over the long term. The two most important financial metrics for determining
financial sustainability and creditworthiness are cash reserves and debt service coverage.

Page 31



  2 of 2  
 

GovRates
1988 Varick Way 

Casselberry, FL 32707-2409 
Telephone and Fax: (833) GOV-PLAN 

 The proposed monthly user rates should be considered equitable, affordable, and
competitive.

The proposed rate plan should not cause "rate shock" to customers. From a best financial
management practices standpoint, smaller incremental increases over time can help avoid
future rate shock and large "catch up" rate increases.

 The proposed rates should enable the utility to perform the necessary capital improvements
and operational enhancements. The rates should also provide sufficient margins for capital
reinvestment in the System.

 The proposed user rates should provide the System with an adequate level of revenue
stability given the seasonality and cyclicality of irrigation water sales.

 The irrigation water user rate structure should encourage conservation of water resources.

The financial and rate plan should reflect a reasonable balance of the aforementioned
considerations. Following this letter is an executive summary that provides an overview of our
analyses and conclusions.

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the District and would like to thank the
management and staff for their tremendous assistance and cooperation during the course of the
irrigation water rate study.

Yours in government service,
GovRates, Inc.

Bryan A. Mantz, CMC, CGFM
President

Page 32



i 

CONTENTS 
Letter of Transmittal

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
ES 1: General...........................................................................................................................................ES 1
ES 2: Costs Recovered Through Irrigation Water Rates.................................................................ES 1
ES 3: Revenue Requirements .............................................................................................................. ES 2

Exhibit ES 1: Revenue Requirements Components ......................................................................... ES 2
ES 4: Issues Identified ...........................................................................................................................ES 2

Issue: Irrigation System Not Currently Self Sustainable ..................................................................ES 2
Issue: Capital Funding ...................................................................................................................... ES 3
Issue: Operating Expense Increases ................................................................................................. ES 3
Issue: Well Payments ....................................................................................................................... ES 3

Exhibit ES 2: Bill Comparison With City of North Port Fiscal Year 2024 Rates ..........................ES 4
Issue: Differences in Per Gallon Costs of Irrigation Water Among Customer Types .......................ES 4
Issue: Billing of Common Area Irrigation Water ..............................................................................ES 4

ES 5: Financial Forecast ........................................................................................................................ES 4
Exhibit ES 3: Two Rate Scenarios ..................................................................................................... ES 5

ES 6: Proposed Monthly Irrigation Water Rates .............................................................................ES 6
Exhibit ES 4: WVID Irrigation Water Bill Comparison ......................................................................ES 7

ES 7: Recommendations.......................................................................................................................ES 8

Tables and Figures:
Table ES 1: Schedule of Proposed Irrigation Water Rates ................................................................ ES 9
Figure ES 1: Comparison of Monthly Charges for Reclaimed Water Service for Single

Family Residential Customers Using 10,000 Gallons ................................................... ES 10
Figure ES 2: Comparison of Monthly Charges for Potable Water Service for Single

Family Residential Customers Using 10,000 Gallons ................................................... ES 11

SECTION 1: FINANCIAL FORECAST
 
1 1: General...............................................................................................................................................1 1
1 2: Existing Monthly Irrigation Water Rates ....................................................................................1 1

Exhibit 1 1: Existing Irrigation Water Rates Per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) ..........................1 1
1 3: Irrigation Water System Customer Statistics.............................................................................1 1
1 4: Revenues Under Existing Monthly Irrigation Water Rates .....................................................1 1
1 5: Revenue Requirements � Principal Assumptions and Considerations.................................1 2

Page 33



ii

CONTENTS (cont.) 
SECTION 1: FINANCIAL FORECAST: (cont.)

Tables:
Table 1 1: Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth ................................................ 1 4
Table 1 2: Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates ............................................ 1 22
Table 1 3: Development of Net Revenue Requirements from User Rates and

Projected Revenue Adjustments � Irrigation System ..................................................... 1 29
Table 1 4: Projected Operating Expenses � Irrigation System ........................................................ 1 30
Table 1 5: Estimated Multi Year Capital Improvement Program and Funding Sources .................... 1 31

SECTION 2: USER RATE DESIGN:
 
2 1: User Rate Design � General ...........................................................................................................2 1
2 2: Proposed Monthly Irrigation Water Rate Design .....................................................................2 1
2 3: Bill Comparison � Neighboring Utilities ......................................................................................2 2

Tables and Figures:
Table 2 1: Irrigation Water User Rate Design � Fiscal Year 2025 ...................................................... 2 4
Table 2 2: Comparison of Typical Monthly Billed for Reclaimed Water Service................................. 2 6
Table 2 3: Comparison of Typical Monthly Residential Bills for Potable Water Service ..................... 2 8

APPENDIX: Details on Historical Developer Deficit Funding
as of September 30, 2023

Page 34



 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Page 35



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

EXECUTIVE  
SUMMARY  
AND RECOMMENDATIONS
ES-1: General 

The West Villages Improvement District (the "District" or the "WVID") owns an irrigation water utility
system (the "System" or the "Utility"). The System should have revenues equal to the costs of the services
provided by the Utility, and the District should establish rates sufficient to cover the cost of operating,
maintaining, repairing, and financing the System. There may also be rate covenants associated with the
System's anticipated debt that require the District to establish the Utility's rates at certain levels to meet
the debt obligations. To assist the District in reviewing the sufficiency of its rates, GovRates, Inc.
("GovRates") was retained to perform an irrigation water rate study. The last formal rate study was
completed in September 2018.

ES-2: Costs Recovered Through Irriga on Water Rates 

Costs recovered through the District's irrigation water rates include:

Purchased reclaimed water costs from the City of North Port (the primary supplier) and Sarasota
County. After March 2024, the EnglewoodWater District will no longer provide reclaimedwater to the
District. Based on current estimates from the District's engineer, reclaimed water can currently
provide only 21% of the current irrigation water demand. The remainder of the demand must come
from well water and stormwater / retained water.
Electricity.
Fuel/oil.
System repairs.
Engineering fees.
Management fees (includes billing and accounting).
Operations administration (includes field personnel).
Legal fees.
Audit.
Well availability payments (currently being litigated).
Capital improvement program � New infrastructure and renewals/replacements.
In the future: Debt payments associated with paying off the developer for historical deficit funding
and for financing capital improvements as needed.

ES-1
Page 36



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

ES-3: Revenue Requirements 

As part of the current rate study, financial projections were prepared for the System through the Fiscal
Year 2033 (the "Forecast Period"). The costs associated with operating and maintaining a utility system,
as well as the costs of financing the renewals and replacements of existing facilities and the capital
improvements for upgrades and expansions, are generally considered to be the revenue requirements of
public utilities such as the District's. With respect to identifying revenue requirements for the Utility, the
following Exhibit ES 1 shows the elements considered:

Exhibit ES-1: Revenue Requirement Components 

The financial and rate plan should recognize the need tomaintain appropriate debt service coverage ratios
and adequate operating margins and reserves to fund ongoing capital needs and maintain the System's
financial condition or "creditworthiness."

ES-4: Issues Iden ed 

As of the date of this report, there are certain unknown factors at this time which limit our ability to
provide rate recommendations beyond the initial year:

Outcome of litigation or agreement among parties on future well availability charges.
Willingness of developer to continue deficit funding.

A discussion of issues identified during the study follows.

Issue: Irriga on System Not Currently Self-Sustainable  

The System currently relies on developer deficit funding that must eventually be repaid. Historical deficit
funding as of September 30, 2023 totaled about $3.8 million, which consisted of $1.7 million for operating
and $2.1 million for capital. The details of this deficit funding are shown in the Appendix of this report.
The Fiscal Year 2024 budgeted developer subsidy for capital / operating is $517,876. Per the deficit funding
agreement with the developer, the District is not charged interest for any deficit funding.

ES-2
Page 37



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

Future bond issues may be needed to pay off the deficit funding balance, and the timing of these bond
issues depends on the developer's willingness to continue deficit funding. The longer the continued deficit
funding, the more units over which to pay the debt, the more gradual the required irrigation water rate
increases. District representatives have discussed continued deficit funding with the developer, but the
developer has not yet made any commitment. Tax exempt bonds are anticipated to be issued to pay off
the capital improvements deficit funding, while taxable bonds are anticipated to be issued to pay off the
deficit funding of operating costs.

Issue: Capital Funding  

About $13.5 million of capital needs have been identified through the Fiscal Year 2033. These needs are
based on master plan cost estimates and renewal/replacement cost estimates provided by the District
staff. The capital needs are considered necessary to meet irrigation demand and keep the System
operationally sustainable. The System needs adequate infrastructure among the sources of water supply
to ensure that all communities are able to receive irrigation water when needed. Approximately $5.8
million (43%) of the capital needs are assumed to be funded by future unit bonds. All customers benefit
from having more units over which to pay for System fixed costs.

Issue: Opera ng Expense Increases  

Opera ng expenses have increased substan ally and are projected to con nue increasing. The local
Tampa St. Petersburg Clearwater Consumer Price Index (CPI) has increased by about 31% since
September 2018 when the last rate study was completed. There are many factors that a ect the costs of
opera ons over which the U lity has limited or no control. Factors such as cost increases from electric
power providers, changes in fuel and oil prices resul ng from global market changes, and compe on for
scarce resources such as concrete and building materials o en result in cost increases that are greater
than the change in the consumer price index (general ina on). Vola le market condi ons have caused
the supply costs of steel, PVC pipes, and othermaterials to increase substan ally. U lity costs also typically
increase at a higher rate than general ina on due to the regulatory environment.

Issue: Well Payments  

Future well payments are uncertain pending the resolu on of current li ga on. The well availability
charges represented in this study are simply those charged pursuant to the Irriga on Water Supply
Agreement dated December 4, 2018 as amended. GovRates had no involvement in the establishment and
amount of these charges.We are not water rights valua on experts and do not claim to have the exper se
and experience to provide an expert opinion on the validity of the well availability charges and charge
amounts. The valua on of water rights is typically determined based on the cost of replacement with
another source. Per the easement agreement submi ed with the water use permit applica on:

"Any rates for water charged by Grantee [Thomas Ranch Intangibles] will be competitive
with prevailing rates charged by the City of North Port or other utility providers in the West
Villages Improvement District."

ES-3
Page 38



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

The only alternative to well water currently available is potable water from the City of North Port. Our
understanding is that the holder of the water rights / permit does have the option of cutting off the
District's supply of well water and selling the well water to other entities. If this situation were to occur,
the District would most likely need to secure a (more expensive) potable water source to handle a large
portion of the irrigation demand. A bill comparison of the well availability charges with the City of North
Port's Fiscal Year 2024 rates is shown in the following Exhibit ES 2.

As shown in the preceding exhibit, the more water used, the lower the effective rate per 1,000 gallons of
the well availability charge.

Issue: Di erences in Per-Gallon Costs of Irriga on Water Among Customer Types  

Based on decisions on how the irrigation system was structured, there are three basic customer types:

Direct connection to master distribution system.
Irrigation lakes with private irrigation pumps.
Irrigation lakes with WVID irrigation pumps.

Customers with private irrigation pumps pay additional operating and maintenance costs for irrigation
water. The District staff continues to collect data, but current estimates are at least $0.20 per 1,000
gallons.

Issue: Billing of Common Area Irriga on Water  

Per Board direction, GovRates has recognized the billing of common area irrigation water in Fiscal Year
2025. This policy equates to charging the District for the District's use of irrigationwater, and these charges
would be paid as operating costs from other District units. Based on recent history, the common area
irrigation equates to about 114,920,000 gallons.

ES-5: Financial Forecast 

Without rate adjustments, the irrigation water system is on the path to bankruptcy. In the absence of
future increases to the well availability charges and North Port bulk reclaimed water rates, GovRates has
recognized the need for revenue increases under two scenarios:

Description Amount
City of North Port Bulk Reclaimed Water Rate Per 1,000 Gallons $0.31
Well Availability Charge Per 1,000 Gallons at Usage of 15,000 Gallons $0.28
Well Availability Charge Per 1,000 Gallons at Usage of 10,000 Gallons $0.42
Well Availability Charge Per 1,000 Gallons at Usage of 3,000 Gallons $1.39
City of North Port Bulk Potable Water Rate Per 1,000 Gallons $6.83
City of North Port Effective Retail Potable Water Rate Per 1,000 Gallons at Usage of 10,000 Gallons $10.13

[*] Reflects North Port water rates that became effective on December 1, 2023.

Exhibit ES-2: Bill Comparison With City of North Port Fiscal Year 2024 Rates [*]

ES-4
Page 39



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

The developer continues deficit funding through Fiscal Year 2033.
The developer requires repayment of deficit funding in three years.

The increases under these two scenarios are summarized in the following Exhibit ES 3. Exhibit ES 3 also
shows revenues vs. revenue requirements graphs for the two scenarios.

Scenario 1 Scenario 2
Developer Continues 

Deficit Funding Through 
Fiscal Year 2033

Developer Requires 
Repayment of Deficit 

Funding in Three Years
Recognized Recognized

Effective Date Revenue Adjustment Revenue Adjustment
As Soon As Practical 30.0% 30.0%
October 1, 2025 6.0% 16.0%
October 1, 2026 6.0% 16.0%
October 1, 2027 6.0% 16.0%
October 1, 2028 6.0% 1.5%
October 1, 2029 6.0% 1.5%
October 1, 2030 6.0% 1.5%
October 1, 2031 6.0% 1.5%
October 1, 2032 6.0% 1.5%

Exhibit ES-3: Two Rate Scenarios

ES-5
Page 40



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

The initial adjustment is projected to eliminate the System's reliance on developer deficit funding for
operating expenses. There would be continued developer deficit funding for capital needs. As shown in
the preceding Exhibit ES 3, there are significant differences in the increase percentages between the two
scenarios. GovRates recommends that rate adjustments beyond the initial adjustment be adopted after
the District receives a commitment from the developer regarding future deficit funding.

ES-6: Proposed Monthly Irriga on Water Rates  

Table ES 1 at the end of this Executive Summary shows the proposed monthly irrigation rates. The
following Exhibit ES 4 shows a WVID irrigation water bill comparison under the well availability charges
and North Port bulk reclaimed water rates effective in March 2024.

ES-6
Page 41



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

Comparing the above cost per gallon of irrigation water service with the cost per gallon of other
commodities communicates the value of the service.

Figures ES 1 and ES 2 at the end of this Executive Summary show graphical reclaimed water and potable
water bill comparisons at a usage level of 10,000 gallons, the historical usage level used by the District for
comparison purposes. Since only a portion of the District's irrigation demand can be met by reclaimed
water, both reclaimed water and potable water bill comparisons are appropriate.

The proposed rates produce bills that are competitive with those of other utilities. Bill comparisons should
not be considered a "report card" on how well a utility is performing because there aremany reasons why
rates differ among utilities, such as reclaimed water pricing strategies. For example, JEA (Jacksonville),
Florida's largest water and wastewater utility, prices its reclaimed water the same as potable irrigation
water. The justification for JEA's pricing strategy is that i) reclaimed water provides the same benefit / use
as potable irrigation water; and ii) not everyone has access to reclaimed water, and it is unfair to pay a
higher potable water rate just because reuse is unavailable.

 
Existing Rates $12.86 $1.29 $0.0013
Proposed Rates - Customers With Private 
Irrigation Pumps [*] 15.82                 $2.96 1.58                  $0.0016
Proposed Rates - All Other Customers 17.82                 4.96 1.78                  $0.0018

 

North Port Bulk Potable Water Rates $68.30 $6.83 $0.0068

North Port Retail Potable Water Rates 101.26               10.13                $0.0101

[*] These customers pay additional operating and maintenance expenses for irrigation water.

Compare with City of North Port Potable Water Rates:

Total Cost Per 
1,000 Gallons 
of Irrigation 

Water Service

Description

Monthly Bill for 
One ERU Using 
10,000 Gallons  

Total Cost Per 
1,000 Gallons 

of Potable 
Water Service

Total Cost Per 
Gallon of 

Potable Water 
Service

Exhibit ES-4: WVID Irrigation Water Bill Comparison

Description

Monthly Bill for 
One ERU Using 
10,000 Gallons

Increase in 
Customer 

Monthly Bill

Total Cost Per 
Gallon of 
Irrigation 

Water Service

ES-7
Page 42



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

ES-7: Recommenda ons  

The recommendations for this study are:

 Adopt the first year / initial irrigation water rate adjustments, which are anticipated to eliminate the
operating deficit funding and to start the System on a path toward self sustainability.

 In one year, validate the need for rate adjustments for Fiscal Year 2026 and beyond. By that time,
there may be possible resolution of some current issues / unknowns. The customer growth, usage,
and expense projections should be updated.

 Update the financial and rate plan regularly to reflect changing conditions and preserve the ability to
gradually phase in irrigation water rate adjustments. The District has the potential for tremendous
growth, and it is important to continually monitor actual vs. projected results. The multi year plan is
anticipated to remain affordable and competitive by utility industry standards.

 To promote the equitability of the irrigation water rates, continue to collect data regarding additional
operating and maintenance costs paid by certain customers to receive irrigation water.

ES-8
Page 43



TABLE ES-1 
Schedule of Proposed Irrigation Water Rates 

Proposed Irrigation Quality Water Rates 

Rates per 1 Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Tier 1 Tier 24

Monthly Base Charge Rate1 $2.35 n/a 
Well Availability Rate2 $4.17 n/a 

Volumetric Rate per 1,000 gallons 
Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate3 $0.25 n/a 
Volumetric Usage Rate1 

- Customers with Private Irrigation Pumps $0.68 $2.04 
- All Other Customers $0.88 $2.64 

Common area irrigation water use shall be billed at the effective Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate per 
1,000 gallons plus the effective Tier 1 Volumetric Rate per 1,000 gallons for All Other Customers as 
referenced in the above table (i.e., customers without private irrigation pumps). For the purposes of 
irrigation water billing, common areas shall include District-owned roadway medians, between sidewalk 
and curb, entrance ways, any buffer areas, any common amenity such as a dog park, and any other areas 
determined by the Board. 

1   In the absence of a formal study recommendation or action by the Board, the Monthly Base Charge Rate and the Volumetric 
Usage Rate shall be automatically increased effective October 1st of each fiscal year. The percentage increase shall be the 
percentage increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Tampa-St. Petersburg-Clearwater, Florida area, all items, 
all urban consumers, not seasonally adjusted (Series ID: CUURS35DSA0 accessed via https://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/srgate) from 
January of the preceding calendar year to January of the current calendar year as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of 
the United States Department of Labor. The calculated rates shall be rounded up to the nearest cent. The first increases under 
these provisions, if any, shall become effective on October 1, 2025. 

2  Pursuant to the Irrigation Water Supply Agreement, dated December 4, 2018, as amended, the Well Availability Rate is $4.17 
as of March 2024 and may be increased at the beginning of each fiscal year by an amount not to exceed the greater of i) 5.5% 
(i.e., the 10-year average of the United States CPI-Water and Sewerage Maintenance Series at the time of adoption of these 
rates); or ii) the July-to-July change in the United States CPI-Water and Sewerage Maintenance Series without the need for a 
further public hearing. 

3  The Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate shall be automatically increased based on the percentage increase, if any, in the City of 
North Port reclaimed water rate charged to the District (which is $0.31/1,000 gallons as of March 2024) without the need for a 
further public hearing. The calculated rates shall be rounded up to the nearest cent. 

4  To promote water conservation, Tier 2 volumetric rates are priced at three (3) times Tier 1 volumetric rates. Tier 2 volumetric 
rates will apply for those customers exceeding 1.5 times their monthly irrigation allocation (hereinafter the �Monthly 
Allocation�) based on AGMOD Demand Calculations, as determined by the District Manager or their designee. The Monthly 
Allocation shall be calculated by multiplying the AGMOD Reserved Annual Average Daily Quantity  (expressed in gallons per 
day) by the number of days in a given month. Monthly Allocations will accommodate applicable grow-in practices for new 
construction, as determined to be appropriate by the District Manager or their designee. Tier 2 rates will only be applied to usage 
that exceeds the Monthly Allocation. 

ERUs Per Customer Class 

Product Type Metric ERU 
Single-Family1 Residential Unit 1 unit 1 
Multi-Family2 Residential Unit 1 unit .33 
Commercial Irrigable Acres3 .075 irrigable acres 1 
Recreational Irrigable Acres4 .075 irrigable acres 1 

1 A single-family unit is defined as a building containing not more than two (2) dwellings. 
2 A multi-family unit is defined as a building containing more than two (2) dwellings. 
3 Irrigable acreage for commercial property is calculated based on 16% of the net developable area (i.e. gross land area less major 
roadway right-of-way and wetland areas) for each parcel. 
4 Irrigable acreage for recreational property (i.e. golf courses, parks, athletic facilities, etc.) is calculated based on an estimate of 
the irrigable area for the property as conducted by a Professional Engineer. 

ES-9
Page 44



$12.86 
$15.82 

$17.82 

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

Figure ES-1
West Villages Improvement District

Comparison of
Monthly Charges for Reclaimed Water Service for

Single Family Residential Customers Using 10,000 Gallons

Rates Effective March 2024

Reclaimed Water WVID Irrigation Water (Not Just Reclaimed)

ES-10

Page 45



$12.86 $15.82 $17.82

$0.00

$20.00

$40.00

$60.00

$80.00

$100.00

$120.00

Figure ES-2
West Villages Improvement District

Comparison of
Monthly Charges for Potable Water Service for

Single Family Residential Customers Using 10,000 Gallons

Rates Effective March 2024

Potable Water WVID Irrigation Water

ES-11

Page 46



 
SECTION 1 

Financial Forecast 

Page 47



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

SECTION 1: 

FINANCIAL FORECAST  
1-1: General

This section of the report reflects Scenario 1: Developer Continues Deficit Funding Through Fiscal Year
2033 as referenced in the Executive Summary of this report.

1-2: Exis ng Monthly Irriga on Water Rates

The District�s existing monthly irrigation water rates are summarized in the following Exhibit 1 1.

1-3: Irriga on Water System Customer Sta s cs

The District has the poten al for tremendous growth. The number of billable equivalent residen al units
(ERU's) has doubled over the past years � 2,958 ERU's in Fiscal Year 2021 to 5,926 ERU's in Fiscal Year
2023. A similar growth rate is projected to con nue over the next few years.

A summary of the historical and projected customer sta s cs is shown in Table 1 1 at the end of this
sec on. The growth projec ons were based on es mated absorp on schedules and discussions with the
District sta .

1-4: Revenues Under Exis ng Monthly Irriga on Water Rates

The forecast of revenues from exis ng irriga on water rates was based on i) the projec on of System
accounts and corresponding irriga on water usage as shown in Table 1 1; and ii) the exis ng rates for
irriga on water service. A summary of the projected irriga on water rate revenues derived under exis ng
rates is included in Table 1 2 at the end of this sec on.

Description Amount

Well Availability Charge Per ERU $4.17
Capital Recovery Fee Per ERU $1.39

Volumetric Rate Per 1,000 Gallons
Tier 1 $0.73
Tier 2 $1.39

Exhibit 1-1: Existing Irrigation Water Rates 
Per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)

1-1
Page 48



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

1-5: Revenue Requirements � Principal Assump ons and Considera ons 

The costs associated with opera ng and maintaining a u lity system, as well as the costs of nancing the
renewals and replacements of exis ng facili es and the capital improvements for upgrades and
expansions, are generally considered as the revenue requirements of a public u lity such as the District�s
System. The sum of these costs, a er adjus ng for other opera ng and non opera ng (e.g., interest
income) revenues available to the u lity, represents the net revenue requirements of a u lity system that
must be funded from the monthly user charges or rates. The following is a summary of the net revenue
requirements deriva on:

+ Cost of Opera on and Maintenance
+ Debt Service Payments (Senior and Subordinate)
+ Transfers and Administra on Payments
+ Capital Project Financing
+ Working Capital Reserves / Financial Compliance

Other Opera ng Revenue and Other Funding Sources
Interest Income

= Net Revenue Requirements (Funded from User Rates)

Net revenue requirements signify the expenditure levels required to be recovered frommonthly user fees
or rates. The development of the net revenue requirements of the System is a cri cal component of the
analysis since u lity rates should be designed to fully recover the cost of providing service.

The nancial evalua on contained in this u lity rate study covered projec ons through the Fiscal Year
ending September 30, 2033 (previously dened as the "Forecast Period"). A forecast of System opera ons
was prepared to i) assess the adequacy of u lity rates in the near future; ii) recognize poten al cost
recovery strategies based on the phase in of any required rate adjustments tomeet the projected revenue
requirements and nance iden ed capital expenditure requirements; and iii) examine the nancial
implica ons of alterna ves to funding the System�s mul year capital improvement program.

The projected revenue requirements are shown in Table 1 3 at the end of this sec on. In the prepara on
of the nancial projec ons contained in this report and the conclusions that follow, GovRates has made
certain assump ons with respect to condi ons that may occur in the future. While we believe the
assump ons are reasonable and based on the best available informa on for the purpose of this report,
they are dependent upon future events, and actual condi ons may di er from those assumed. We
recommend that the District con nue to compare actual results with the projec ons contained in this
report to ensure that the System's rates con nue to be su cient.

For the purposes of the nancial projec ons, the principal considera ons and assump ons were either
made by us or provided to us by others. These considera ons and assump ons include the following:

1. Projected revenues from current rates and charges for the District�s System have been based on the
schedule of rates and charges currently in e ect. Such rates were applied to the customer and sales
usage forecast discussed previously.

1-2
Page 49



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

2. Projected opera ng expenditures were based on discussions with the District sta and are
summarized in Table 1 4 at the end of this sec on.

3. The System currently has no debt outstanding. It was assumed that the U lity would issue two 20
year senior lien bond issues in Fiscal Year 2033 to repay the developer for assumed decit funding
during Forecast Period. The assump ons for these bond issues are:

Tax Free Bond Issue for Capital Decit Funding
Fiscal Year of issuance: 2033
Principal amount of bonds: $5,930,000
Bond term: 20 years
Interest rate: 7.0%
Issuance costs as percent of principal: 2.5%
Annual payment: $559,750

Taxable Bond Issue for Opera ng Decit Funding
Fiscal Year of issuance: 2033
Principal amount of bonds: $1,720,000
Bond term: 20 years
Interest rate: 9.33%
Issuance costs as percent of principal: 2.5%
Annual payment: $192,916

4. The projected capital expenditures through the Fiscal Year 2033 for the irriga on water system were
based on discussions with the District sta . Table 1 5 at the end of this sec on provides a detailed
lis ng of the capital projects for the System as well as projected funding sources for such projects
within the analysis period.

5. The District has levied assessments to pay for the extraordinary expenses resul ng from the current
li ga on (e.g., engineering, legal, rate consultants, etc.) during the ini al years of the Forecast Period.
These assessments have been treated as other revenues in this analysis.

1-3
Page 50



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Gran Paradiso (Village A)
Growth

1 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   105              105              22                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
2 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
3 Total Growth -                   105              105              22                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
4 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 1,025           1,301           1,423           1,423           1,423           1,528           1,633           1,655           1,655           1,655           1,655           1,655           1,655           1,655           1,655           
5 Multi-Family 225              396              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              512              
6 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly 1,250           1,697           1,935           1,935           1,935           2,040           2,145           2,167           2,167           2,167           2,167           2,167           2,167           2,167           2,167           

    
ERUs Per Customer

7 Estimated Annual ERUs 1,099           1,432           1,592           1,592           1,592           1,697           1,802           1,824           1,824           1,824           1,824           1,824           1,824           1,824           1,824           

8 Average Monthly Use Per ERU 16,569         15,998         10,159         12,311         14,072         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         13,435         

Sales
9 Tier 1 Water Sales 218,509       274,902       194,080       235,195       256,670       273,599       290,528       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       
10 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   12,165         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
11 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 218,509       274,902       194,080       235,195       268,835       273,599       290,528       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       
12 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
13 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) 218,509       274,902       194,080       235,195       268,835       273,599       290,528       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       294,075       

Grand Living (Village D)
Growth

14 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 12                150              150              150              150              17                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
15 Multi-Family 173              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
16 Total Growth 185              150              150              150              150              17                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
17 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   12                162              312              462              612              629              629              629              629              629              629              
18 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   173              173              173              173              173              173              173              173              173              173              173              
19 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   185              335              485              635              785              802              802              802              802              802              802              

    
ERUs Per Customer

20 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   69                219              369              519              669              686              686              686              686              686              686              

21 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   3,047           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           2,508           

Sales
22 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   2,076           6,590           11,104         15,618         20,132         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         
23 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   447              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
24 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   2,523           6,590           11,104         15,618         20,132         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         
25 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
26 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   2,523           6,590           11,104         15,618         20,132         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         20,644         

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

1-4

Page 51



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Publix (Village D)
Growth

27 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
28 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
29 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
30 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                
31 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
32 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                

    
ERUs Per Customer

33 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                53                

34 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   11,219         11,151         10,371         16,128         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         15,099         

Sales
35 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   7,135           7,092           6,596           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           
36 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   654              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
37 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   7,135           7,092           6,596           10,257         9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           
38 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
39 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   7,135           7,092           6,596           10,257         9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           9,603           

Tropia (Village D)
Growth

40 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
41 Multi-Family 223              64                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
42 Total Growth 223              64                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
43 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
44 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   223              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              
45 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   223              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              287              

    
ERUs Per Customer

46 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   74                95                95                95                95                95                95                95                95                95                95                

47 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   4,545           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           4,092           

Sales
48 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   3,634           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           
49 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   402              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
50 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   4,036           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           
51 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
52 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   4,036           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           4,665           

1-5

Page 52



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Davis 2 (Apartments and Townhomes - Village D)
Growth

53 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
54 Multi-Family -                   100              100              159              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
55 Total Growth -                   100              100              159              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
56 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
57 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              359              359              359              359              359              359              359              359              
58 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              359              359              359              359              359              359              359              359              

    
ERUs Per Customer

59 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   33                66                118              118              118              118              118              118              118              118              

60 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
61 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,614           7,227           12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         
62 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
63 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,614           7,227           12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         
64 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
65 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,614           7,227           12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         12,921         

Hospital Property Phase 1 (Village D)
Growth

66 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
67 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
68 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
69 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
70 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
71 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

    
ERUs Per Customer

72 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

73 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
74 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
75 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
76 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
77 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
78 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

1-6

Page 53



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Public Safety Building (Village D)
Growth

79 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 16                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
80 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
81 Total Growth 16                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
82 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   23                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                
83 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
84 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   23                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                

    
ERUs Per Customer

85 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   23                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                39                

86 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   13,815         8,058           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           7,055           

Sales
87 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   3,813           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           
88 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   469              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
89 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   3,813           3,771           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           
90 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
91 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   3,813           3,771           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           3,302           

Solea Age-Restricted Apartments (Village D)
Growth

92 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
93 Multi-Family -                   204              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
94 Total Growth -                   204              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
95 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
96 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              
97 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              204              

    
ERUs Per Customer

98 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   67                67                67                67                67                67                67                67                67                67                

99 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
100 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           
101 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
102 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           
103 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
104 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           7,337           

1-7

Page 54



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Antigua (Village E)
Growth

105 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 53                72                50                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
106 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
107 Total Growth 53                72                50                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
108 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   53                125              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              
109 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
110 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   53                125              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              

    
ERUs Per Customer

111 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   53                125              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              175              

112 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   16,684         9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
113 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   10,611         13,688         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         
114 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
115 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   10,611         13,688         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         
116 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
117 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   10,611         13,688         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         19,163         

Stillwell (Village E)
Growth

118 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   50                224              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
119 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
120 Total Growth -                   50                224              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
121 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              
122 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
123 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              

    
ERUs Per Customer

124 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              274              

125 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
126 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,475           30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         
127 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
128 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,475           30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         
129 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
130 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,475           30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         30,003         

1-8

Page 55



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Academy at Wellen Park
Growth

131 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                  
132 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
133 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                  

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
134 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                  
135 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
136 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                  

    
ERUs Per Customer

137 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                  

138 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         10,900         

Sales
139 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   131              
140 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
141 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   131              
142 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
143 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   131              

60-Acre Parcel - Coach Homes (Village E)
Growth

144 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   100              100              100              100              -                   -                   -                   -                   
145 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
146 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   100              100              100              100              -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
147 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              300              400              400              400              400              400              
148 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
149 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              300              400              400              400              400              400              

    
ERUs Per Customer

150 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              300              400              400              400              400              400              

151 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
152 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,950         21,900         32,850         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         
153 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
154 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,950         21,900         32,850         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         
155 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
156 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,950         21,900         32,850         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         43,800         

1-9

Page 56



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Avelina (Village F)
Growth

157 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
158 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
159 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
160 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   56                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                
161 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
162 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   56                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                

    
ERUs Per Customer

163 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   56                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                96                

164 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   6,057           9,444           16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         16,985         

Sales
165 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   4,070           10,880         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         
166 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
167 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   4,070           10,880         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         
168 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
169 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   4,070           10,880         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         19,567         

Wysteria (Village F)
Growth

170 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
171 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
172 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
173 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   51                153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              
174 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
175 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   51                153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              

    
ERUs Per Customer

176 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   51                153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              153              

177 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   2,734           7,205           15,424         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         11,904         

Sales
178 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   1,673           13,229         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         
179 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   6,461           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
180 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   1,673           13,229         28,318         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         
181 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
182 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   1,673           13,229         28,318         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         21,857         

1-10

Page 57



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Solstice (Village F)
Growth

183 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 16                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
184 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
185 Total Growth 16                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
186 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   171              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              
187 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
188 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   171              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              

    
ERUs Per Customer

189 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   171              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              187              

190 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   104              5,664           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           6,179           

Sales
191 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   214              12,711         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         
192 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
193 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   214              12,711         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         
194 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
195 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   214              12,711         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         13,866         

Sunstone (Village F)
Growth

196 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 52                100              100              100              100              100              30                -                   -                   -                   -                   
197 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
198 Total Growth 52                100              100              100              100              100              30                -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
199 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   103              155              255              355              455              555              655              685              685              685              685              685              
200 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
201 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   103              155              255              355              455              555              655              685              685              685              685              685              

    
ERUs Per Customer

202 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   103              155              255              355              455              555              655              685              685              685              685              685              

203 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   5,333           18,920         9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
204 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   6,591           35,191         27,923         38,873         49,823         60,773         71,723         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         
205 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
206 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   6,591           35,191         27,923         38,873         49,823         60,773         71,723         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         
207 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
208 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   6,591           35,191         27,923         38,873         49,823         60,773         71,723         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         75,008         

1-11

Page 58



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Gran Place (Village F)
Growth

209 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 31                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
210 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
211 Total Growth 31                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
212 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   11                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                
213 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
214 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   11                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                

    
ERUs Per Customer

215 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   11                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                42                

216 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   1,644           12,305         9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
217 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   217              6,202           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           
218 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
219 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   217              6,202           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           
220 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
221 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   217              6,202           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           4,599           

BB Living (Village G)
Growth

222 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   100              100              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
223 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
224 Total Growth -                   100              100              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
225 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              
226 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
227 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              

    
ERUs Per Customer

228 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              200              

229 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
230 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,400           16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         
231 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
232 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,400           16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         
233 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
234 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,400           16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         16,800         

1-12

Page 59



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Brightmore (Village G)
Growth

235 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 13                120              120              120              120              120              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
236 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
237 Total Growth 13                120              120              120              120              120              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
238 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   13                133              253              373              493              613              613              613              613              613              613              
239 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
240 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   13                133              253              373              493              613              613              613              613              613              613              

    
ERUs Per Customer

241 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   13                133              253              373              493              613              613              613              613              613              613              

242 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,399           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
243 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   1,466           11,172         21,252         31,332         41,412         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         
244 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
245 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   1,466           11,172         21,252         31,332         41,412         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         
246 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
247 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   1,466           11,172         21,252         31,332         41,412         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         51,492         

Braves (Village G)
Growth

248 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
249 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
250 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
251 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 711              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              
252 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
253 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly 711              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              

    
ERUs Per Customer

254 Estimated Annual ERUs 711              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              458              

255 Average Monthly Use Per ERU 7,612           7,484           6,199           5,652           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           5,808           

Sales
256 Tier 1 Water Sales 64,942         41,131         34,068         31,061         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         
257 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
258 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 64,942         41,131         34,068         31,061         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         
259 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
260 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) 64,942         41,131         34,068         31,061         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         31,920         

1-13

Page 60



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Palmera Single Family Homes (Village I)
Growth

261 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   20                155              150              150              150              150              150              -                   -                   -                   
262 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
263 Total Growth -                   20                155              150              150              150              150              150              -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
264 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                175              325              475              625              775              925              925              925              925              
265 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
266 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                175              325              475              625              775              925              925              925              925              

    
ERUs Per Customer

267 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                175              325              475              625              775              925              925              925              925              

268 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
269 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           14,700         27,300         39,900         52,500         65,100         77,700         77,700         77,700         77,700         
270 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
271 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           14,700         27,300         39,900         52,500         65,100         77,700         77,700         77,700         77,700         
272 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
273 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           14,700         27,300         39,900         52,500         65,100         77,700         77,700         77,700         77,700         

Palmera Coach Homes (Village I)
Growth

274 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   20                50                50                50                50                50                -                   -                   -                   -                   
275 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
276 Total Growth -                   20                50                50                50                50                50                -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
277 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                70                120              170              220              270              270              270              270              270              
278 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
279 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                70                120              170              220              270              270              270              270              270              

    
ERUs Per Customer

280 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                70                120              170              220              270              270              270              270              270              

281 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
282 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           5,880           10,080         14,280         18,480         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         
283 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
284 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           5,880           10,080         14,280         18,480         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         
285 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
286 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           5,880           10,080         14,280         18,480         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         22,680         

1-14

Page 61



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

WP Golf & CC (Village J)
Growth

287 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 637              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
288 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
289 Total Growth 637              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
290 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   891              1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           
291 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
292 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   891              1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           

    
ERUs Per Customer

293 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   891              1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           1,528           

294 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   7,311           6,107           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           5,493           

Sales
295 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   69,598         100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       
296 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   8,568           11,252         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
297 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   78,166         111,979       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       
298 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
299 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   78,166         111,979       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       100,727       

WP Golf & CC HOA (Village J)
Growth

300 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 190              262              262              262              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
301 Multi-Family 134              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
302 Total Growth 324              262              262              262              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
303 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   190              452              714              977              977              977              977              977              977              977              977              
304 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   134              134              134              134              134              134              134              134              134              134              134              
305 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   324              586              849              1,111           1,111           1,111           1,111           1,111           1,111           1,111           1,111           

    
ERUs Per Customer  

306 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   234              496              759              1,021           1,021           1,021           1,021           1,021           1,021           1,021           1,021           

307 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   12,062         7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
308 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   33,869         41,664         63,756         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         
309 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
310 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   33,869         41,664         63,756         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         
311 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
312 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   33,869         41,664         63,756         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         85,764         

1-15

Page 62



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Landspur - Single Family (Village K)
Growth

313 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   20                120              88                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
314 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
315 Total Growth -                   20                120              88                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
316 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                140              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              
317 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
318 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                140              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              

    
ERUs Per Customer

319 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   20                140              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              228              

320 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
321 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           11,760         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         
322 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
323 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           11,760         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         
324 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
325 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,680           11,760         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         19,152         

Landspur - Coach Homes (Village K)
Growth

326 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   50                50                50                100              75                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
327 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
328 Total Growth -                   50                50                50                100              75                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
329 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                100              150              250              325              325              325              325              325              325              
330 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
331 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                100              150              250              325              325              325              325              325              325              

    
ERUs Per Customer

332 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   50                100              150              250              325              325              325              325              325              325              

333 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
334 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   4,200           8,400           12,600         21,000         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         
335 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
336 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   4,200           8,400           12,600         21,000         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         
337 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
338 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   4,200           8,400           12,600         21,000         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         27,300         

1-16

Page 63



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Everly - Single Family (Village K)
Growth

339 Single Family / Villas -                   15                50                50                50                50                26                -                   -                   -                   -                   
340 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
341 Total Growth -                   15                50                50                50                50                26                -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
342 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   15                65                115              165              215              241              241              241              241              241              
343 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
344 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   15                65                115              165              215              241              241              241              241              241              

    
ERUs Per Customer

345 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   15                65                115              165              215              241              241              241              241              241              

346 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           7,000           

Sales
347 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,260           5,460           9,660           13,860         18,060         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         
348 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
349 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,260           5,460           9,660           13,860         18,060         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         
350 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
351 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,260           5,460           9,660           13,860         18,060         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         20,244         

Renaissance (Phase 1 & 2)
Growth

352 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 242              11                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
353 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
354 Total Growth 242              11                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
355 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 304              429              429              429              671              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              
356 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
357 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly 304              429              429              429              671              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              

    
ERUs Per Customer

358 Estimated Annual ERUs 304              429              429              429              671              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              682              

359 Average Monthly Use Per ERU 6,780           8,360           9,551           10,470         8,677           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
360 Tier 1 Water Sales 24,734         43,035         49,166         52,877         62,920         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         
361 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   1,020           6,949           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
362 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 24,734         43,035         49,166         53,897         69,869         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         
363 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
364 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) 24,734         43,035         49,166         53,897         69,869         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         74,679         

1-17

Page 64



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Preserve (Not Part of WUP Permit)
Growth

365 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
366 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
367 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
368 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 158              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              
369 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
370 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly 158              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              

    
ERUs Per Customer

371 Estimated Annual ERUs 158              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              223              

372 Average Monthly Use Per ERU 5,078           6,392           6,883           6,321           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           6,044           

Sales
373 Tier 1 Water Sales 9,627           17,104         18,420         16,916         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         
374 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
375 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 9,627           17,104         18,420         16,916         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         
376 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
377 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) 9,627           17,104         18,420         16,916         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         16,174         

Oasis (Not Part of WUP Permit)
Growth

378 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 68                18                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
379 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
380 Total Growth 68                18                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
381 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 68                68                68                68                136              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              
382 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
383 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly 68                68                68                68                136              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              

    
ERUs Per Customer

384 Estimated Annual ERUs 68                68                68                68                136              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              154              

385 Average Monthly Use Per ERU 10,366         12,320         12,341         18,343         10,134         9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           

Sales
386 Tier 1 Water Sales 8,459           10,053         10,070         14,968         16,539         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         
387 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
388 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 8,459           10,053         10,070         14,968         16,539         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         
389 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
390 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) 8,459           10,053         10,070         14,968         16,539         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         16,863         

1-18

Page 65



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Tortuga (Not Part of WUP Permit)
Growth

391 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
392 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
393 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
394 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   28                111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              
395 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
396 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   28                111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              

    
ERUs Per Customer

397 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   28                111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              111              

398 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   3,423           6,809           11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         11,771         

Sales
399 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   1,150           9,070           15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         
400 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
401 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   1,150           9,070           15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         
402 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
403 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   1,150           9,070           15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         15,679         

Grand Lake
Growth

404 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
405 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
406 Total Growth -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
407 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
408 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
409 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

    
ERUs Per Customer

410 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

411 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Sales
412 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           
413 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
414 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           
415 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
416 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           6,401           

1-19

Page 66



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Downtown WP
Growth

417 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents 39                8                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
418 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
419 Total Growth 39                8                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
420 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   39                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                
421 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
422 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   39                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                

    
ERUs Per Customer

423 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   39                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                47                

424 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   5,220           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           4,226           

Sales
425 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   1,978           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           
426 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   465              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
427 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   2,443           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           
428 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
429 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   2,443           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           2,384           

Other Customers (Master Plan Year 2023)
Growth

430 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   208              208              209              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
431 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
432 Total Growth -                   208              208              209              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly
433 Single Family / Villas or Equivalents -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   208              416              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              
434 Multi-Family -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
435 Total Accounts or ERUs - Average Monthly -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   208              416              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              

    
ERUs Per Customer

436 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   208              416              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              625              

437 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           7,500           

Sales
438 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   18,720         37,440         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         
439 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
440 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   18,720         37,440         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         
441 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
442 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   18,720         37,440         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         56,250         

1-20

Page 67



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Customer and Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Growth

Line Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
No. Description 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Table 1-1

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Total Irrigation Water - Subtotal
443 Total ERUs for Base Charges 2,340           2,663           2,958           4,382           5,926           7,376           9,154           10,557         11,377         12,039         12,395         12,545         12,545         12,545         12,546         
444 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) 326,271       393,360       319,789       480,813       708,361       770,965       931,966       1,051,111    1,117,005    1,176,797    1,210,016    1,222,616    1,222,616    1,222,616    1,222,746    
445 -                   -                   1                  
446 Base ERU Growth for Fiscal Year 1,544           1,450           1,778           1,403           820              662              356              150              -                   -                   1                  

Mattamy Unit Closings
447 October to December
448 January to March
449 April to June
450 July to September
451
452 Effective ERU Growth for Fiscal Year 729              653              800              631              369              298              160              68                -                   -                   0                  
453 Additional Effective ERU's from Prior Year -                   815              798              978              772              451              364              196              83                -                   -                   
454 Total ERU Growth 729              1,468           1,598           1,609           1,141           749              524              263              83                -                   0                  
455
456 ERU Adjustments to Be Conservative
457 Estimated Annual ERUs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (400)             (400)             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
458
459 Average Monthly Use Per ERU -                   -                   -                   -                   9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           9,125           
460
461 Sales
462 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (43,800)        (43,800)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
463 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
464 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (43,800)        (43,800)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
465 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
466 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (43,800)        (43,800)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Common Area Usage
Sales

467 Tier 1 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       
468 Tier 2 Water Sales -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
469 Total Annual Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       
470 Conservation/Usage Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
471 Adjusted Water Sales (kgal) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       114,920       

Total Irrigation Water  
472 Total ERUs for Base Charges 2,340           2,663           2,958           4,382           5,926           7,376           8,754           10,157         11,377         12,039         12,395         12,545         12,545         12,545         12,546         
473 Change in ERUs 323              295              1,424           1,544           1,450           1,378           1,403           1,220           662              356              150              -                   -                   1                  

474
Total Annual Water Sales without Common 
Area Usage (kgal) 326,271       393,360       319,789       480,813       708,361       770,965       888,166       1,007,311    1,117,005    1,176,797    1,210,016    1,222,616    1,222,616    1,222,616    1,222,746    

475
Total Annual Water Sales with Common 
Area Usage (kgal) 326,271       393,360       319,789       480,813       708,361       770,965       1,003,086    1,122,231    1,231,925    1,291,717    1,324,936    1,337,536    1,337,536    1,337,536    1,337,666    

476 Total Annual Water Sales (gpd) 893,893       1,077,699    876,134       1,317,296    1,940,715    2,112,233    2,748,182    3,074,606    3,375,137    3,538,950    3,629,961    3,664,481    3,664,481    3,664,481    3,664,840    
477 Total Annual Water Sales - Peak (gpd) 2,800,865    3,376,789    2,745,221    4,127,527    6,080,908    6,618,332    8,610,969    9,633,765    10,575,430  11,088,709  11,373,877  11,482,041  11,482,041  11,482,041  11,483,164  

1-21

Page 68



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

IRRGATION RATE REVENUE
Gran Paradiso (Village A)

1 Well Availability Charges 85,001$        90,255$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        91,356$        
2 Capital Recovery Charges 28,313          30,065          30,432          30,432          30,432          30,432          30,432          30,432          30,432          30,432          
3 Usage / Volume Charges 199,727        212,085        214,674        214,674        214,674        214,674        214,674        214,674        214,674        214,674        
4 Total 313,042$      332,405$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      336,462$      

Grand Living (Village D)
5 Well Availability Charges 10,992$        18,498$        26,004$        33,510$        34,361$        34,361$        34,361$        34,361$        34,361$        34,361$        
6 Capital Recovery Charges 3,657            6,159            8,661            11,163          11,447          11,447          11,447          11,447          11,447          11,447          
7 Usage / Volume Charges 4,811            8,106            11,401          14,696          15,070          15,070          15,070          15,070          15,070          15,070          
8 Total 19,460$        32,763$        46,066$        59,370$        60,877$        60,877$        60,877$        60,877$        60,877$        60,877$        

Publix (Village D)
9 Well Availability Charges 2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          2,652$          
10 Capital Recovery Charges 884               884               884               884               884               884               884               884               884               884               
11 Usage / Volume Charges 7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            7,010            
12 Total 10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        10,546$        

Tropia (Village D)
13 Well Availability Charges 4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          4,787$          
14 Capital Recovery Charges 1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            1,584            
15 Usage / Volume Charges 3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            3,405            
16 Total 9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          9,777$          

Davis 2 (Apartments and Townhomes - Village D)
17 Well Availability Charges 1,668$          3,336$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          5,988$          
18 Capital Recovery Charges 552               1,104            1,982            1,982            1,982            1,982            1,982            1,982            1,982            1,982            
19 Usage / Volume Charges 2,638            5,276            9,432            9,432            9,432            9,432            9,432            9,432            9,432            9,432            
20 Total 4,858$          9,716$          17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        17,402$        

Hospital Property Phase 1 (Village D)
21 Well Availability Charges -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
22 Capital Recovery Charges -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
23 Usage / Volume Charges -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
24 Total -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

1-22

Page 69



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Public Safety Building (Village D)
25 Well Availability Charges 1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          1,952$          
26 Capital Recovery Charges 651               651               651               651               651               651               651               651               651               651               
27 Usage / Volume Charges 2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            2,410            
28 Total 5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          5,012$          

Solea Age-Restricted Apartments (Village D)
29 Well Availability Charges 3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          3,403$          
30 Capital Recovery Charges 1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            1,126            
31 Usage / Volume Charges 5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            5,356            
32 Total 9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          9,884$          

Antigua (Village E)
33 Well Availability Charges 6,255$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          8,757$          
34 Capital Recovery Charges 2,085            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            2,919            
35 Usage / Volume Charges 9,992            13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          13,989          
36 Total 18,332$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        25,665$        

Stillwell (Village E)
37 Well Availability Charges 2,502$          13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        13,711$        
38 Capital Recovery Charges 834               4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            4,570            
39 Usage / Volume Charges 3,997            21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          21,902          
40 Total 7,333$          40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        40,183$        

Academy at Wellen Park
41 Well Availability Charges -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 50$               
42 Capital Recovery Charges -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   17                 
43 Usage / Volume Charges -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   95                 
44 Total -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 162$             

60-Acre Parcel - Coach Homes (Village E)
45 Well Availability Charges -$                 -$                 5,004$          10,008$        15,012$        20,016$        20,016$        20,016$        20,016$        20,016$        
46 Capital Recovery Charges -                   -                   1,668            3,336            5,004            6,672            6,672            6,672            6,672            6,672            
47 Usage / Volume Charges -                   -                   7,994            15,987          23,981          31,974          31,974          31,974          31,974          31,974          
48 Total -$                 -$                 14,666$        29,331$        43,997$        58,662$        58,662$        58,662$        58,662$        58,662$        

1-23

Page 70



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Avelina (Village F)
49 Well Availability Charges 4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          4,804$          
50 Capital Recovery Charges 1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            1,601            
51 Usage / Volume Charges 14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          14,284          
52 Total 20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        20,689$        

Wysteria (Village F)
53 Well Availability Charges 7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          7,656$          
54 Capital Recovery Charges 2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            2,552            
55 Usage / Volume Charges 15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          15,955          
56 Total 26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        26,164$        

Solstice (Village F)
57 Well Availability Charges 9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          9,357$          
58 Capital Recovery Charges 3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            3,119            
59 Usage / Volume Charges 10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          10,123          
60 Total 22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        22,599$        

Sunstone (Village F)
61 Well Availability Charges 12,760$        17,764$        22,768$        27,772$        32,776$        34,277$        34,277$        34,277$        34,277$        34,277$        
62 Capital Recovery Charges 4,253            5,921            7,589            9,257            10,925          11,426          11,426          11,426          11,426          11,426          
63 Usage / Volume Charges 20,383          28,377          36,370          44,364          52,357          54,755          54,755          54,755          54,755          54,755          
64 Total 37,397$        52,063$        66,728$        81,394$        96,059$        100,459$      100,459$      100,459$      100,459$      100,459$      

Gran Place (Village F)
65 Well Availability Charges 2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          2,102$          
66 Capital Recovery Charges 701               701               701               701               701               701               701               701               701               701               
67 Usage / Volume Charges 3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            3,357            
68 Total 6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          6,160$          

BB Living (Village G)
69 Well Availability Charges 5,004$          10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        10,008$        
70 Capital Recovery Charges 1,668            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            3,336            
71 Usage / Volume Charges 6,132            12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          12,264          
72 Total 12,804$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        25,608$        

1-24

Page 71



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Brightmore (Village G)
73 Well Availability Charges 6,655$          12,660$        18,665$        24,670$        30,675$        30,675$        30,675$        30,675$        30,675$        30,675$        
74 Capital Recovery Charges 2,218            4,220            6,222            8,223            10,225          10,225          10,225          10,225          10,225          10,225          
75 Usage / Volume Charges 8,156            15,514          22,872          30,231          37,589          37,589          37,589          37,589          37,589          37,589          
76 Total 17,029$        32,394$        47,759$        63,124$        78,489$        78,489$        78,489$        78,489$        78,489$        78,489$        

Braves (Village G)
77 Well Availability Charges 22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        22,918$        
78 Capital Recovery Charges 7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            7,639            
79 Usage / Volume Charges 23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          23,301          
80 Total 53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        53,859$        

Palmera Single Family Homes (Village I)
81 Well Availability Charges 1,001$          8,757$          16,263$        23,769$        31,275$        38,781$        46,287$        46,287$        46,287$        46,287$        
82 Capital Recovery Charges 334               2,919            5,421            7,923            10,425          12,927          15,429          15,429          15,429          15,429          
83 Usage / Volume Charges 1,226            10,731          19,929          29,127          38,325          47,523          56,721          56,721          56,721          56,721          
84 Total 2,561$          22,407$        41,613$        60,819$        80,025$        99,231$        118,437$      118,437$      118,437$      118,437$      

Palmera Coach Homes (Village I)
85 Well Availability Charges 1,001$          3,503$          6,005$          8,507$          11,009$        13,511$        13,511$        13,511$        13,511$        13,511$        
86 Capital Recovery Charges 334               1,168            2,002            2,836            3,670            4,504            4,504            4,504            4,504            4,504            
87 Usage / Volume Charges 1,226            4,292            7,358            10,424          13,490          16,556          16,556          16,556          16,556          16,556          
88 Total 2,561$          8,963$          15,365$        21,767$        28,169$        34,571$        34,571$        34,571$        34,571$        34,571$        

WP Golf & CC (Village J)
89 Well Availability Charges 76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        76,461$        
90 Capital Recovery Charges 25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          25,487          
91 Usage / Volume Charges 73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          73,531          
92 Total 175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      175,479$      

WP Golf & CC HOA (Village J)
93 Well Availability Charges 24,860$        37,987$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        51,114$        
94 Capital Recovery Charges 8,281            12,657          17,033          17,033          17,033          17,033          17,033          17,033          17,033          17,033          
95 Usage / Volume Charges 30,415          46,542          62,608          62,608          62,608          62,608          62,608          62,608          62,608          62,608          
96 Total 63,556$        97,186$        130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      130,755$      

1-25

Page 72



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Landspur - Single Family (Village K)
97 Well Availability Charges 1,001$          7,006$          11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        11,409$        
98 Capital Recovery Charges 334               2,335            3,803            3,803            3,803            3,803            3,803            3,803            3,803            3,803            
99 Usage / Volume Charges 1,226            8,585            13,981          13,981          13,981          13,981          13,981          13,981          13,981          13,981          
100 Total 2,561$          17,926$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        29,193$        

Landspur - Coach Homes (Village K)
101 Well Availability Charges 2,502$          5,004$          7,506$          12,510$        16,263$        16,263$        16,263$        16,263$        16,263$        16,263$        
102 Capital Recovery Charges 834               1,668            2,502            4,170            5,421            5,421            5,421            5,421            5,421            5,421            
103 Usage / Volume Charges 3,066            6,132            9,198            15,330          19,929          19,929          19,929          19,929          19,929          19,929          
104 Total 6,402$          12,804$        19,206$        32,010$        41,613$        41,613$        41,613$        41,613$        41,613$        41,613$        

Everly - Single Family (Village K)
105 Well Availability Charges 751$             3,253$          5,755$          8,257$          10,759$        12,060$        12,060$        12,060$        12,060$        12,060$        
106 Capital Recovery Charges 250               1,084            1,918            2,752            3,586            4,020            4,020            4,020            4,020            4,020            
107 Usage / Volume Charges 920               3,986            7,052            10,118          13,184          14,778          14,778          14,778          14,778          14,778          
108 Total 1,921$          8,323$          14,725$        21,127$        27,529$        30,858$        30,858$        30,858$        30,858$        30,858$        

Renaissance (Phase 1 & 2)
109 Well Availability Charges 34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        34,127$        
110 Capital Recovery Charges 11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          11,376          
111 Usage / Volume Charges 54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          54,516          
112 Total 100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      100,019$      

Preserve (Not Part of WUP Permit)
113 Well Availability Charges 11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        11,159$        
114 Capital Recovery Charges 3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            3,720            
115 Usage / Volume Charges 11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          11,807          
116 Total 26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        26,685$        

Oasis (Not Part of WUP Permit)
117 Well Availability Charges 7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          7,706$          
118 Capital Recovery Charges 2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            2,569            
119 Usage / Volume Charges 12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          12,310          
120 Total 22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        22,585$        

1-26

Page 73



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Tortuga (Not Part of WUP Permit)
121 Well Availability Charges 5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          5,554$          
122 Capital Recovery Charges 1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            1,851            
123 Usage / Volume Charges 11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          11,446          
124 Total 18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        18,852$        

Grand Lake
125 Well Availability Charges -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
126 Capital Recovery Charges -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
127 Usage / Volume Charges 4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            4,673            
128 Total 4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          4,673$          

Downtown WP
129 Well Availability Charges 2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          2,352$          
130 Capital Recovery Charges 784               784               784               784               784               784               784               784               784               784               
131 Usage / Volume Charges 1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            1,740            
132 Total 4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          4,876$          

Other Customers (Master Plan Year 2023)
133 Well Availability Charges 10,408$        20,817$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        31,275$        
134 Capital Recovery Charges 3,469            6,939            10,425          10,425          10,425          10,425          10,425          10,425          10,425          10,425          
135 Usage / Volume Charges 13,666          27,331          41,063          41,063          41,063          41,063          41,063          41,063          41,063          41,063          
136 Total 27,543$        55,087$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        82,763$        

ERU Adjustments to Be Conservative
137 Well Availability Charges -$                 (20,016)$      (20,016)$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
138 Capital Recovery Charges -                   (6,672)          (6,672)          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
139 Usage / Volume Charges -                   (31,974)        (31,974)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
140 Total -$                 (58,662)$      (58,662)$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Common Area Usage
141 Usage / Volume Charges -$                 83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        
142 Total -$                 83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        83,892$        

1-27

Page 74



Table 1-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Projected Irrigation Water Revenues Under Existing Rates

Total Irrigation Water Rate Revenue
143 Well Availability Charges 369,352$      438,291$      508,563$      569,612$      602,739$      620,553$      628,059$      628,059$      628,059$      628,109$      
144 Capital Recovery Charges 123,061        146,036        169,454        189,804        200,846        206,784        209,286        209,286        209,286        209,303        
145 Usage / Volume Charges 562,805        732,253        819,229        899,305        942,953        967,203        976,401        976,401        976,401        976,496        
146 Total 1,055,218$   1,316,580$   1,497,247$   1,658,722$   1,746,538$   1,794,540$   1,813,746$   1,813,746$   1,813,746$   1,813,908$   

147 Base Charge Recovery Percentage 46.7% 44.4% 45.3% 45.8% 46.0% 46.1% 46.2% 46.2% 46.2% 46.2%

1-28

Page 75



Table 1-3

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Development of Net Revenue Requirements from User Rates and Projected Revenue Adjustments - Irrigation System

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Operating Expenses
1 Unit 6 Master Irrigation Utility Expenditures 2,124,494$     1,621,874$     1,638,161$     1,776,471$     1,906,776$     1,944,213$     2,000,205$     2,045,210$     2,127,016$     2,140,810$     
2 Contingency and Bad Debt Expense 31,867           24,328           24,572           26,647           28,602           29,163           30,003           30,678           31,905           32,112           
3 Total Operating Expenses 2,156,362$     1,646,202$     1,662,733$     1,803,118$     1,935,377$     1,973,376$     2,030,208$     2,075,888$     2,158,922$     2,172,922$     

 
Debt Service

4 Additional Senior Lien Debt 1 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   559,750$        
5 Additional Senior Lien Debt 2 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     192,916         
6 Total Debt Service -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   752,666$        

Other Revenue Requirements
7 Capital Funded from Rates -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   100,000$        464,000$        2,116,960$     472,486$        116,986$        751,665$        
8 Transfer to Rate Stabilization Fund -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

9 Total Other Revenue Requirements -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   100,000$        464,000$        2,116,960$     472,486$        116,986$        751,665$        

10 Gross Revenue Requirements 2,156,362$     1,646,202$     1,662,733$     1,803,118$     2,035,377$     2,437,376$     4,147,168$     2,548,374$     2,275,907$     3,677,254$     

Less Income and Funds from Other Sources
11 Other Operating Revenue 815,000$        200,000$        -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

12 Net Revenue Requirements 1,341,362$     1,446,202$     1,662,733$     1,803,118$     2,035,377$     2,437,376$     4,147,168$     2,548,374$     2,275,907$     3,677,254$     

Revenue from Existing Rates
13 Irrigation System Rate Revenue 1,055,218$     1,316,580$     1,497,247$     1,658,722$     1,746,538$     1,794,540$     1,813,746$     1,813,746$     1,813,746$     1,813,908$     
14 Prior Year Rate Adjustment -                     -                     449,200         627,000         804,600         984,000         1,163,000       1,341,600       1,530,900       1,731,800       
15 Total Applicable Rate Revenue 1,055,218$     1,316,580$     1,946,447$     2,285,722$     2,551,138$     2,778,540$     2,976,746$     3,155,346$     3,344,646$     3,545,708$     

16 Rate Adjustments 0.00% 30.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
17 Effective Months 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
18 Percent of Current Year Effective 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
19 Revenue from Current Rate Adjustment -$                   395,000$        116,800$        137,100$        153,100$        166,700$        178,600$        189,300$        200,700$        212,700$        

20 Total Rate Revenue 1,055,218$     1,711,580$     2,063,247$     2,422,822$     2,704,238$     2,945,240$     3,155,346$     3,344,646$     3,545,346$     3,758,408$     

21 Revenue Surplus/(Deficiency) Under Proposed Rates (286,144)$      265,378$        400,514$        619,703$        668,861$        507,864$        (991,822)$      796,272$        1,269,439$     81,154$         

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

1-29

Page 76



Table 1-4

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Projected Operating Expenses - Irrigation System

Line
No. Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Unit 6 Master Irrigation Utility Expenditures
1 Engineering 100,000$       100,000$       104,000$       108,160$       112,486$       116,986$       121,665$       126,532$       131,593$       136,857$       
2 Engineering - Extraordinary 49,000           - - - 35,000           - - - 35,000           - 
3 Management 40,000           41,600           43,264           44,995           46,794           48,666           50,613           52,637           54,743           56,932           
4 Operations Administration 125,000         130,000         135,200         140,608         146,232         152,082         158,165         164,491         171,071         177,914         
5 Additional Personnel - - - - - - - - - - 
6 Legal 10,000           10,400           10,816           11,249           11,699           12,167           12,653           13,159           13,686           14,233           
7 Legal - Extraordinary FY22/23 400,000         53,333           - - - - - - - - 
8 Legal - Extaordinary FY 23/24 350,000         46,667           - - - - - - - - 
9 Audit 3,000             3,120             3,245             3,375             3,510             3,650             3,796             3,948             4,106             4,270             

10 Miscellaneous 5,000             5,150             5,305             5,464             5,628             5,796             5,970             6,149             6,334             6,524             
11 Misc - Extraordinary Cost FY 22/23 35,000           16,154           - - - - - - - - 
12 Misc - Extraordinary Cost FY 23/24 30,000           13,846           - - - - - - - - 
13 Utility System - Repairs and Maintenance 150,000         156,000         162,240         168,730         175,479         182,498         189,798         197,390         205,285         213,497         
14 Electricity 262,200         354,788         412,807         471,283         513,924         548,226         575,577         598,600         622,544         647,509         
15 Water 191,199         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         247,516         
16 Fuel and Oil 5,000             5,250             5,513             5,788             6,078             6,381             6,700             7,036             7,387             7,757             
17 Well Availabliitiy Payment 369,095         438,050         508,256         569,305         602,432         620,246         627,752         627,752         627,752         627,802         

18 Total Unit 6 Master Irrigation Utility Expenditures 2,124,494$    1,621,874$    1,638,161$    1,776,471$    1,906,776$    1,944,213$    2,000,205$    2,045,210$    2,127,016$    2,140,810$    

Contingency and Bad Debt Expense
19 Bad Debt Expense -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
20 Contingency Allowance 31,867           24,328           24,572           26,647           28,602           29,163           30,003           30,678           31,905           32,112           

21 Total Contingency and Bad Debt Expense 31,867$         24,328$         24,572$         26,647$         28,602$         29,163$         30,003$         30,678$         31,905$         32,112$         

22 TOTAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM OPERATING EXPE 2,156,362$    1,646,202$    1,662,733$    1,803,118$    1,935,377$    1,973,376$    2,030,208$    2,075,888$    2,158,922$    2,172,922$    

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

1-30

Page 77



Line Funding Adjusted
No. Description Source 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 Total

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
Capital Projects

1 Future Wells Supply Lines DEV -$  270,000$     -$  -$  270,000$     -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  540,000$          
2 Future Wells Supply Lines REV - - - - - - - 270,000       - - 270,000       540,000            
3 16" PVC, C-905 Reclaimed Water Line (Engl. WWTP) REV - - - - - - - 928,800       - - - 928,800            
4 West Villages Parkway Pond Irrigation Delivery DEV 90,054         - - - - - - - - - - 90,054             
5 6" PVC, C-905 Irrigation Water Main with Fittings UnitBonds - - - - - - - - 643,500       643,500       - 1,287,000 
6 12" PVC, C-905 Irrigation Water Main with Fittings UnitBonds - 1,700,200 - - - 817,767       - - - - - 2,517,967 
7 12" PVC, C-905 Irrigation Water Main with Fittings UnitBonds - - - - - - - 817,767       - 817,767 - 1,635,533 
8 16" PVC, C-905 Irrigation Water Main with Fittings UnitBonds - - - 378,000       - - - - - - - 378,000            
9 PIL2A Pump Station DEV - 690,000 - - - - - - - - - 690,000 

10 PIL4 Pump Station DEV 168,000       - - - - - - - - - - 168,000            
11 PIL5 Pump Station REV - - - - - - - 450,000       - - - 450,000            
12 97 DEV - - - 360,000       - - - - - - - 360,000            
13 98 DEV - - - 360,000       - - - - - - - 360,000            
14 100 DEV - - - - - 360,000 - - - - - 360,000 
15 101 DEV - - - - - 360,000 - - - - - 360,000 
16 128 REV - - - - - - - 360,000       - - - 360,000            
17 129 REV - - - - - - - - 360,000       - - 360,000            
18 130 REV - - - - - - - - - - 360,000       360,000            
19 187 DEV - - - - 360,000       - - - - - - 360,000            
20 188 DEV - - - - - 360,000 - - - - - 360,000            
21 189 REV - - - - - - 360,000       - - - - 360,000            
22 Infrastructure Improvements and Maintenance REV - - - - - 100,000 104,000       108,160       112,486       116,986       121,665       663,298            

23 Subtotal - Capital Projects 258,054$     2,660,200$  -$  1,098,000$  630,000$     1,997,767$  464,000$     2,934,727$  1,115,986$  1,578,253$  751,665$     13,488,652$     

24 TOTAL IRRIGATION WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 258,054$     2,660,200$  -$  1,098,000$  630,000$     1,997,767$  464,000$     2,934,727$  1,115,986$  1,578,253$  751,665$     13,488,652$     

FUNDING SOURCES
IRRIGATION WATER SYSTEM

25 Developer Deficit Funding DEV 258,054$     960,000$     -$  720,000$     630,000$     1,080,000$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  3,648,054$       
26 Funded By Future Unit Bonds UnitBonds - 1,700,200 - 378,000 - 817,767 - 817,767 643,500       1,461,267    - 5,818,500 
27 User Rate Revenue REV - - - - - 100,000 464,000       2,116,960 472,486       116,986       751,665       4,022,098 

28 TOTAL IRRIGATION WATER SYSTEM FUNDING SOURCES 258,054$     2,660,200$  -$  1,098,000$  630,000$     1,997,767$  464,000$     2,934,727$  1,115,986$  1,578,253$  751,665$     13,488,652$     

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Table 1-5

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Estimated Multi-Year Capital Improvement Program and Funding Sources

1-31

Page 78



 
SECTION 2 

User Rate Design 

Page 79



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

SECTION 2:  

USER RATE DESIGN 
2-1: User Rate Design - General

User rate design involves the calcula on of monthly rates and charges for each customer classica on. As
noted in the transmi al le er of this report, developing a nancial and rate plan for the System involves
mul ple considera ons:

The financial and rate plan should consider utility best management practices and should promote
financial sustainability and creditworthiness. Conforming with utility best management practices
enables the utility to accomplish its mission while keeping rates affordable over the long term. The
two most important financial metrics for determining financial sustainability and creditworthiness are
cash reserves and debt service coverage.

The proposed monthly user rates should be considered equitable, affordable, and competitive.

The proposed rate plan should not cause "rate shock" to customers. From a best financial management
practices standpoint, smaller incremental increases over time can help avoid future rate shock and
large "catch up" rate increases.

The proposed rates should enable the utility to perform the necessary capital improvements and
operational enhancements. The rates should also provide sufficient margins for capital reinvestment
in the System.

The proposed user rates should provide the System with an adequate level of revenue stability given
the seasonality and cyclicality of irrigation water sales.

The irrigation water user rate structure should encourage conservation of water resources.

2-2: Proposed Monthly Irriga on Water Rate Design

The proposed irriga on water rates are shown in Table ES 1 of the Execu ve Summary of this report. The
detailed rate design is shown in Table 2 1 at the end of this sec on. Key aspects of the rate design include:

Fixed charge recovery of 40%. Most System costs are fixed (e.g., management fees, operations
administration, etc.) and must be paid regardless of whether water is used. Higher fixed charge
recovery is favored by credit rating agencies since it provides more revenue stability. However, the
utility industry generally considers that greater than 40% fixed charge recovery does not promote
water conservation.

2-1
Page 80



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

Well availability charges / payments based on the effective agreement at the time. The well availability
charges are being litigated, but the effective agreement remains the Irrigation Water Supply
Agreement dated December 4, 2018, as amended. GovRates had no involvement in the establishment
and amount of these charges. We are not water rights valuation experts. The existing agreement may
be amended in the future. 100% of the well availability charge collections = 100% of the well payments
operating expense. The well availability charge could be adjusted and all other rate components would
remain the same.

Purchased reclaimed water component of the volumetric rate that would be adjusted automatically
based on the percentage increases in the North Port reclaimed water rate charged to the District
(rounded up to nearest cent). Future reclaimed water rate increases from North Port are unknown,
and there are no limitations on the amount of the increases. The purchased reclaimed water
component helps the System maintain its financial position when reclaimed water rate increases
occur. Per the rate design, revenues collected under the purchased reclaimed water component =
100% of the projected reclaimed water expense.

Lower volumetric rate for customers with private irrigation pumps. Based on decision on how the
System was structured, customers with private irrigation pumps pay additional operating and
maintenance costs for irrigation water. These extra costs were not a choice made by the customers.

In the absence of a formal rate study recommendation, automatic rate indexing for rate structure
components � other than purchased reclaimed water volumetric rates and well availability charges �
based on increases the local Tampa St. Petersburg Clearwater Consumer Price Index. Automatic
indexing is common among utilities in Florida and is a best financial management practice. Smaller
rate increases over time help prevent large future rate increases and "rate shock." This practice is
favored by credit rating agencies since the indexing provides more assurance that rates will keep up
with inflation.

Consistent with the practices of most utilities, there are no limitations on what the collected revenues
can be used for as long as the spending is authorized by the Board (e.g., adopted budget).

2-3: Bill Comparisons � Neighboring U li es

Tables 2 2 and 2 3 at the end of this section contain reclaimed water and potable water bill comparisons
respectively. Since only a portion of the District's irrigation demand can be met by reclaimed water, both
reclaimed water and potable water bill comparisons are appropriate. These comparisons show how bills
under the existing and proposed WVID irrigation water rates at different usage levels compare with bills
under the rates of other utilities. Graphical comparisons at a usage level of 10,000 gallons, the historical
usage level used by the District for comparison purposes, are shown in Figures 2 1 and 2 2 in the Executive
Summary section.

It should be noted that a bill comparison is not a "report card" on howwell a u lity is performing, as there
are several factors that have an e ect on the level of rates charged. For potable water service, these
factors may include, but are not limited to, the following:

2-2
Page 81



Irrigation Water Rate StudyWest Villages Improvement District 

1. Source of water supply and level of treatment required before the distribu on of water to the ul mate
customer, including how much of water supply is purchased from other u li es.

2. Plant capacity u liza on, age and assistance in the funding of such plant capacity by federal grants,
impact fees, etc.

3. Overall size of the customer base (economies of scale) served as well as the type of customer served
(certain customers may have higher usage requirements which may dampen per unit rates which is
common for high commercial or industrialized customer bases for u li es).

4. Geographic density of the customer base (u li es with many high density mul family customers may
have lower unit costs).

5. General fund and administra ve fee transfers made by municipal and county systems which may
account for di erences in the level of rates charged.

6. Bond covenants and funding requirements of the rates.

7. Level of capital improvements required to meet regulatory requirements and service area needs,
including the construc on of growth related assets in rela on to service area expansion.

Di erent u li es have di erent reclaimed water pricing strategies. If reclaimed water were set at the cost
of service, theymight be higher than potable water rates and would discourage reuse consump on. There
are two typical reclaimed water pricing strategies:

Reclaimed water priced lower than potable water to encourage customers to hook up to the system.
Utilities have a need to dispose of treated wastewater. Without the reclaimed water system, a utility
needs to invest in an expensive deep injection well or other disposal alternative. The reclaimed water
system provides an alternative water supply � the utility does not need to invest in expensive new
water treatment capacity.

Reclaimed water priced the same as potable irrigation water. The justification for this pricing strategy
is that i) reclaimed water provides the same benefit / use as potable irrigation water; and ii) not
everyone has access to reclaimedwater, and it is unfair to pay a higher potable water rate just because
reuse is unavailable. JEA (Jacksonville), Florida's largest water and wastewater utility, has this pricing
strategy.

For the u li es included in the rate comparisons on Tables 2 2 and 2 3 at the end of this sec on, no
analysis has been made of the above men oned factors. However, the proposed irriga on water rates
produce bills that are comparable with bills under the reclaimed water rates of neighboring u li es and
lower than bills under the potable water rates of the other u li es.

2-3
Page 82



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Irrigation Water User Rate Design - Fiscal Year 2025

FY 2025 Billing Determinants Adjustment For ERUs for ERUs for Well Proposed Proposed Proposed
Line 2025 Equivalent Location Combined Partial Year Well Availability Base Availability Base Charge Purchased Reclaimed Volumetric Revenue
No. Description Unadjusted Adjustment Adjusted Factor Factor Factor Implementation Charge Charge Charge (Rounded) Water Rate (kgal) Rate (kgal) Check

FIXED CHARGES

ALL ERUs

1 All ERUs 8,754 0 8,754 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 8,754 8,754 4.17$ 2.35$ 684,913$        
2 Total ERUs 8,754 0 8,754 8,754 8,754 684,913$        

3 Total Billing Units 8,754 0 8,754 8,754 8,754

Check (should be zero): 0

Well Availability
Charge Base Charge

4 Classified Costs For Rate Design 438,050$        246,582$        
5 Costs From (To) Usage Charge 0 0
6 Subtotal 438,050$        246,582$        
7 Revenue Adjustment Factor 0.00% 0.00%
8 Adjusted Classified Costs for Rate Design 438,050$        246,582$        Total: 684,913$        
9 Rate Per Equivalent Unit 4.1700$          2.3473$          

10 Rounded Rate Per Equivalent Unit 4.17$              2.35$              

Table 2-1

2-4

Page 83



West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Irrigation Water User Rate Design - Fiscal Year 2025

FY 2025 Billing Determinants Adjustment For ERUs for ERUs for Well Proposed Proposed Proposed
Line 2025 Equivalent Location Combined Partial Year Well Availability Base Availability Base Charge Purchased Reclaimed Volumetric Revenue
No. Description Unadjusted Adjustment Adjusted Factor Factor Factor Implementation Charge Charge Charge (Rounded) Water Rate (kgal) Rate (kgal) Check

Table 2-1

USAGE CHARGE PER 1,000 GALLONS
Assumed Additional

Cost Per 1,000 Gallons
That Customer Must Pay

Customers Service Type Due to Service Type
11 Gran Paradiso (Village A) Other -$ 290,528 0 290,528 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 290,528 290,528 0.25$ 0.88$ 328,296$        
12 Grand Living (Village D) Other - 11,104 0 11,104 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 11,104 11,104 0.25 0.88 12,548            
13 Publix (Village D) Other - 9,603 0 9,603 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 9,603 9,603 0.25 0.88 10,851            
14 Tropia (Village D) Other - 4,665 0 4,665 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 4,665 4,665 0.25 0.88 5,271              
15 Davis 2 (Apartments and Townhomes - Village D) Other - 7,227 0 7,227 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 7,227 7,227 0.25 0.88 8,167              
16 Hospital Property Phase 1 (Village D) Other - 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 0 0 0.25 0.88 - 
17 Public Safety Building (Village D) Other - 3,302 0 3,302 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 3,302 3,302 0.25 0.88 3,731              
18 Solea Age-Restricted Apartments (Village D) Other - 7,337 0 7,337 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 7,337 7,337 0.25 0.88 8,290              
19 Antigua (Village E) Private Pump Station 0.20 19,163 0 19,163 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 14,807 14,807 0.25 0.68 17,821            
20 Stillwell (Village E) Private Pump Station 0.20 30,003 0 30,003 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 23,184 23,184 0.25 0.68 27,903            
21 Academy at Wellen Park Other - 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 0 0 0.25 0.88 - 
22 60-Acre Parcel - Coach Homes (Village E) Private Pump Station 0.20 0 0 0 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 0 0 0.25 0.68 - 
23 Avelina (Village F) Private Pump Station 0.20 19,567 0 19,567 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 15,120 15,120 0.25 0.68 18,197            
24 Wysteria (Village F) Private Pump Station 0.20 21,857 0 21,857 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 16,889 16,889 0.25 0.68 20,327            
25 Solstice (Village F) Private Pump Station 0.20 13,866 0 13,866 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 10,715 10,715 0.25 0.68 12,896            
26 Sunstone (Village F) Private Pump Station 0.20 38,873 0 38,873 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 30,038 30,038 0.25 0.68 36,151            
27 Gran Place (Village F) Private Pump Station 0.20 4,599 0 4,599 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 3,554 3,554 0.25 0.68 4,277              
28 BB Living (Village G) Private Pump Station 0.20 16,800 0 16,800 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 12,982 12,982 0.25 0.68 15,624            
29 Brightmore (Village G) Private Pump Station 0.20 21,252 0 21,252 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 16,422 16,422 0.25 0.68 19,764            
30 Braves (Village G) Private Pump Station 0.20 31,920 0 31,920 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 24,665 24,665 0.25 0.68 29,685            
31 Palmera Single Family Homes (Village I) Private Pump Station 0.20 14,700 0 14,700 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 11,359 11,359 0.25 0.68 13,671            
32 Palmera Coach Homes (Village I) Private Pump Station 0.20 5,880 0 5,880 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 4,544 4,544 0.25 0.68 5,468              
33 WP Golf & CC (Village J) Private Pump Station 0.20 100,727 0 100,727 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 77,835 77,835 0.25 0.68 93,676            
34 WP Golf & CC HOA (Village J) Private Pump Station 0.20 63,756 0 63,756 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 49,266 49,266 0.25 0.68 59,293            
35 Landspur - Single Family (Village K) Private Pump Station 0.20 11,760 0 11,760 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 9,087 9,087 0.25 0.68 10,937            
36 Landspur - Coach Homes (Village K) Private Pump Station 0.20 8,400 0 8,400 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 6,491 6,491 0.25 0.68 7,812              
37 Everly - Single Family (Village K) Private Pump Station 0.20 5,460 0 5,460 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 4,219 4,219 0.25 0.68 5,078              
38 Renaissance (Phase 1 & 2) Private Pump Station 0.20 74,679 0 74,679 0.77 1.00 0.77 100.0% 57,707 57,707 0.25 0.68 69,451            
39 Preserve (Not Part of WUP Permit) Other - 16,174 0 16,174 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 16,174 16,174 0.25 0.88 18,276            
40 Oasis (Not Part of WUP Permit) Other - 16,863 0 16,863 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 16,863 16,863 0.25 0.88 19,055            
41 Tortuga (Not Part of WUP Permit) Other - 15,679 0 15,679 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 15,679 15,679 0.25 0.88 17,717            
42 Grand Lake Other - 6,401 0 6,401 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 6,401 6,401 0.25 0.88 7,233              
43 Downtown WP Other - 2,384 0 2,384 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 2,384 2,384 0.25 0.88 2,694              
44 Other Customers (Master Plan Year 2023) Other - 37,440 0 37,440 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 37,440 37,440 0.25 0.88 42,307            
45 ERU Adjustments to Be Conservative Other - (43,800) 0 (43,800) 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% (43,800) (43,800) 0.25 0.88 (49,494)           
46 Common Area Usage - 114,920 0 114,920 1.00 1.00 1.00 100.0% 114,920 114,920 0.25 0.88 129,860          

47 Total 1,003,086 0 1,003,086 888,709 888,709 1,032,835$     

48 Total Water System Usage 1,003,086 0 1,003,086 888,709 888,709

Check (should be zero): 0 Purchased Base Capacity
Reclaimed Water + Variable

49 Classified Costs For Rate Design 247,516$        779,432$        
50 Costs From (To) Usage Charge 0 0
51 Subtotal 247,516$        779,432
52 Revenue Adjustment Factor 0.00% 0.00%
53 Adjusted Classified Costs for Rate Design 247,516$        779,432$        Total: 1,032,835$     

54 Rate Per Equivalent Unit 0.2468$          0.8770$          0.6%
55 Rounded Rate Per Equivalent Unit 0.25$              0.88$              

Revenues Under Proposed Rates:
56 Base Charges 684,913$        
57 Usage Charges 1,032,835
58 Total Revenues 1,717,748$     
59 Revenue Adjustment 0
60 Adjusted Revenue 1,717,748$     

61 Revenue Requirements 1,711,580$     

Difference:
62 Amount $6,168
63 Percent 0.36%

64 Base Charge Recovery 40%
65 Volumetric Charge Recovery 60%

2-5

Page 84



Table 2-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 50,000 100,000
No. Description Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons

NOTE: Reclaimed water rates of other utilities may reflect different levels of service or may not fully recover costs of providing service.

West Villages Improvement District

(Not Just Reclaimed)

1 Existing Irrigation Water Rates $5.56 $9.21 $12.86 $16.51 $20.16 $23.81 $42.06 $78.56

2
Proposed Irrigation Water Rates - Effective As Soon 
As Practical 6.52 12.17 17.82 23.47 29.12 34.77 63.02 119.52

3 Difference - Amount 0.96 2.96 4.96 6.96 8.96 10.96 20.96 40.96

4 Difference - Percent 17.3% 32.1% 38.6% 42.2% 44.4% 46.0% 49.8% 52.1%

5
Proposed Irrigation Water Rates - Customers With 
Private Irrigation Pumps 6.52 11.17 15.82 20.47 25.12 29.77 53.02 99.52

6 Difference - Amount 0.96 1.96 2.96 3.96 4.96 5.96 10.96 20.96

7 Difference - Percent 17.3% 21.3% 23.0% 24.0% 24.6% 25.0% 26.1% 26.7%

Other Florida Utilities:

8 City of Bradenton $6.08 $9.58 $13.08 $16.58 $20.08 $23.23 $38.98 $70.48

9 Charlotte County  3.07 9.02 14.97 20.92 26.87 32.82 62.57 122.07

10 City of Clearwater  18.24 25.84 33.44 41.04 48.64 56.24 94.24 170.24

11 Collier County 11.73 20.48 29.23 37.98 46.73 55.48 99.23 186.73

12 Englewood Water District 0.00 2.40 4.80 7.20 9.60 12.00 24.00 48.00

13 FGUA - Lehigh Acres System (Lee County)  3.86 7.36 10.86 14.36 17.86 21.36 38.86 73.86

14 City of Marco Island  3.00 12.00 21.00 30.00 39.00 48.00 93.00 183.00

15 City of Naples  12.72 16.92 21.12 25.32 29.52 33.72 54.72 96.72

Comparison of Typical Monthly Bills for Reclaimed Water Service

One Equivalent Residential Unit or 5/8" or 3/4" Meter [1]

2-6

Page 85



Table 2-2

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Line 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 50,000 100,000
No. Description Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons

Comparison of Typical Monthly Bills for Reclaimed Water Service

One Equivalent Residential Unit or 5/8" or 3/4" Meter [1]

16 City of North Port [2] 0.00 3.40 6.80 10.20 13.60 17.00 34.00 68.00

17 City of Palmetto 15.10 15.10 15.10 15.10 15.10 15.10 15.10 15.10

18 City of Sarasota  19.86 26.91 33.96 41.01 45.51 50.01 72.51 117.51

19 Sarasota County  5.49 7.94 10.39 12.84 15.29 17.74 29.99 54.49

20 City of Venice (High Pressure)  0.00 7.30 14.60 23.73 34.08 44.43 96.18 199.68

21 Surveyed Other Florida Utilities' Average $7.63 $12.63 $17.64 $22.79 $27.84 $32.86 $57.95 $108.14

22 Maximum 19.86 26.91 33.96 41.04 48.64 56.24 99.23 199.68

23 Minimum 0.00 2.40 4.80 7.20 9.60 12.00 15.10 15.10

NOTE: Reclaimed water rates of other utilities may reflect different levels of service or may not fully recover costs of providing service.

Footnotes:

[1] Rates effective as of March 2024.

2-7

Page 86



Table 2-3

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Comparison of Typical Monthly Residential Bills for Potable Water Service

Line 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 50,000 100,000
No. Description Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons

West Villages Improvement District
1 Existing Irrigation Water Rates 5.56$         9.21$         12.86$       16.51$       20.16$       23.81$       42.06$       78.56$       

2
Proposed Irrigation Water Rates - Effective As 
Soon As Practical 6.52 12.17 17.82 23.47 29.12 34.77 63.02 119.52

3 Difference - Amount 0.96 2.96 4.96           6.96 8.96 10.96 20.96 40.96
4 Difference - Percent 17.3% 32.1% 38.6% 42.2% 44.4% 46.0% 49.8% 52.1%

5
Proposed Irrigation Water Rates - Customers With 
Private Irrigation Pumps 6.52 11.17 15.82 20.47 25.12 29.77 53.02 99.52

6 Difference - Amount 0.96 1.96 2.96           3.96 4.96 5.96 10.96 20.96
7 Difference - Percent 17.3% 21.3% 23.0% 24.0% 24.6% 25.0% 26.1% 26.7%

Other Florida Utilities:
8 City of Bradenton [2] 16.93$       33.45$       54.80$       76.15$       97.50$       118.85$     225.60$     439.10$     
9 Charlotte County [2] 29.10 60.40 95.46 138.94 189.29 240.89 536.82 1,131.82

10 City of Clearwater [2] 26.58 48.14 104.84 172.74 240.64 308.54 648.04 1,327.04
11 Collier County [2] 30.08 50.43 81.08 121.78 162.48 213.33 508.38 1,320.88
12 FGUA - Lehigh Acres System (Lee County) [2] 17.29 48.94 83.47 121.78 165.40 212.80 449.80 923.80
13 Englewood Water District [2] 21.15 33.70 56.31 103.17 171.51 258.66 694.41 1,565.91
14 City of Marco Island [2] 35.96 58.41 80.86 103.31 125.76 157.21 366.21 815.71
15 City of Naples [2] 10.06 18.76 30.71 45.91 67.56 91.39 221.39 481.39
16 City of North Port [2] 25.12 54.59 101.26 168.99 261.28 395.48 1,066.48 2,408.48
17 City of Palmetto [2] 10.38 48.68 90.92 146.96 216.96 286.96 636.96 1,336.96
18 City of Sarasota [2] 19.86 40.63 68.06 111.03 160.58 215.59 599.84 1,368.34
19 Sarasota County [2] 20.18 35.64 59.58 104.28 165.78 239.88 610.38 1,351.38
20 City of Venice [2] 28.33 63.34 114.24 177.74 241.24 304.74 622.24 1,257.24

21 Other Florida Utilities Average 22.39$       45.78$       78.58$       122.52$     174.31$     234.18$     552.81$     1,209.85$  
22 Minimum 10.06 18.76 30.71 45.91 67.56 91.39 221.39 439.10
23 Maximum 35.96 63.34 114.24 177.74 261.28 395.48 1,066.48 2,408.48

Residential Service for a 5/8" or 3/4" Meter [1]
WATER USAGE

2-8

Page 87



Table 2-3

West Villages Improvement District
Irrigation Rate Study

Comparison of Typical Monthly Residential Bills for Potable Water Service

Footnotes:

[1] Amounts reflect bills under single family residential user rates in effect March 2024 and do not include any taxes, franchise fees, or water restriction surcharges,
if any. These bills also reflect rates charged to customers within the municipal borders (e.g., no outside-municipality surcharges, if applied, are included in the
bill comparison).

[2] Utility is currently involved in a rate study, is planning to conduct a rate study, or plans to implement a rate revision or price index / pass-through adjustment
within the next twelve months following the comparison preparation date.

2-9

Page 88



APPENDIX 
Details on Historical Developer 

Deficit Funding as of September 30, 2023 

Page 89



Name Description
Inv. Amount 

(Bond)

West Villages LLLP Electrical Service power to reclaimed PLC PIL 1/wastewater reclaimed line project 4,598.45$               
West Villages LLLP Electrical Service power to reclaimed PLC PIL 1/wastewater reclaimed line project 5,400.00                  
West Villages LLLP Hoover flowguard POC- Renaissance Ph. 1 23,937.86               
West Villages LLLP Hoover flowguard POC- Renaissance Ph. 2/3 37,636.60              
West Villages LLLP Hoover Inv- Tortuga pump station 12,995.47               
West Villages LLLP Tortuga pump station 63,579.54               
West Villages LLLP Upcoming Extraordinary expense for new recharge well 5,000.00                  
West Villages LLLP Applied Drilling and Engineering - 16 inch well construction and testing 161,270.00            
West Villages LLLP Tortuga Pump Station 63,500.00               
West Villages LLLP Control Hookup for Tortuga pump station 13,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Tortuga well 12,500.00               
West Villages LLLP Applied Drilling Engineering Inc inv# 833  pump for new well 80 26,667.84               
West Villages LLLP Well 80 Electrical Hook-Up 13,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Well 80 Meter Assembly 26,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Well 80 Transformer (FPL) 8,000.00                  
West Villages LLLP Meter assemblies (Wysteria, Gran Place, Solstice, Sunstone, & Wellen Park Golf and Country 130,000.00            
West Villages LLLP New Quad pump PIL 2 312,000.00            
West Villages LLLP Public Safety Building Pump Station, final payment, electrical work, bore 155,000.00            
West Villages LLLP Four POC meters- PIL2, Sunstone, Village J, Grand Place 109,000.00            
West Villages LLLP Hoover transfer quad #2 389,787.72            
West Villages LLLP Shipps- New Connection to Existing Reclaim Main 310,933.01            
West Villages LLLP Village G pump station 87,311.14               
West Villages LLLP Big Sky Electric inv# 1886 - Pump Station Quad Transfer #2 5,055.75                  
West Villages LLLP Nostalgic Lampposts inv# 10481 - electrical for West Villages Parkway Pump Station 28,964.84               
West Villages LLLP Shipps Excavating inv# 22-1820- utility location and power for 6" irrigation line 5,100.00                  
West Villages LLLP Hoover inv# 170225 Village K Pump station and POC 29,769.77               
West Villages LLLP Big Sky Electric  inv# 1912 Village G electrical hook up 28,471.07               
West Villages LLLP Nostalgic invoice # 10617- Directional bore for well 91 3,295.00                  
West Villages LLLP Hoover inv# 173728- Village K POC 1 10,628.83               
West Villages LLLP Hoover inv# 173743-Village K additional HDPE pipe installed 7,014.45                  
West Villages LLLP All American Fencing LLC inv# 1146 -Village J station fencing 8,450.00                  

 Page 1 of 3

APPENDIX: Details on Historical Developer Deficit Funding as of September 30, 2023

Page 90



Name Description
Inv. Amount 

(Bond)

West Villages LLLP Hoover inv# 170552 - new meter assembly Gran Paradiso Well 77 27,548.21               
West Villages LLLP Ferguson Inv. 2047028 - 3" meter assembly Village K 3,763.97                  

Capital Developer Deficit Funding (Tax-Exempt) 2,129,179.52$    
 

West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution to Irrigation Fund 35,000.00$            
West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution to Irrigation Fund 24,107.92               
West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution to Irrigation Fund 109,846.25            
West Villages LLLP Shortfall 2nd quarter 2020 20,000.00               
West Villages LLLP ECT Invoice # 203753 82,225.92               
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit 6,513.97                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-1120 3,938.19                  
West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution to Irrigation Fund 75,000.00               
West Villages LLLP ECT inv# 205327 for irrigation general services 19,481.23               
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-1220 2,675.15                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0121 9,563.06                  
West Villages LLLP Hoover Annual Maintenance 25,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Additional operating funds 75,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Cardno 10 year water supply plan 35,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0221 6,166.17                  
West Villages LLLP Additional Operating Funds 125,000.00            
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0421 1,480.09                  
West Villages LLLP Cardno WVID 10-year water supply plan inv# 312207 7,787.50                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0521 1,093.07                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0321 3,540.71                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0621 3,556.40                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn and Associates WVID Reuse FDEP Permit  inv# 148844019-0721 3,919.89                  
West Villages LLLP Additional Operating Funds 200,000.00            
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0921 2,562.70                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-1021 3,671.46                  

 Page 2 of 3

APPENDIX: Details on Historical Developer Deficit Funding as of September 30, 2023

Page 91



Name Description
Inv. Amount 

(Bond)

West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-1121 3,870.20                  
West Villages LLLP Hoover Annual Maintenance 35,550.00               
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-1221 7,573.25                  
West Villages LLLP Additional operating funds 150,000.00           
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-1221 7,573.25                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0122 3,488.53                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0222 4,204.92                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0322 2,343.04                  
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0422 4,288.60                  
West Villages LLLP Operating shortfall 126,268.86            
West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution to Irrigation Fund  Operating funds 40,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Kimley Horn inv# 148844019-0123 24,745.75               
West Villages LLLP Hoover Pumping Systems Annual maintenance contract 56,748.25               
West Villages LLLP Additional Operating funds 75,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Additional operating funds 75,000.00               
West Villages LLLP Developer Contribution - additional operating funds 175,000.00            

Operating Developer Deficit Funding (Taxable) 1,673,784.33$     

 Total Developer Deficit Funding 3,802,963.85$     

 Page 3 of 3

APPENDIX: Details on Historical Developer Deficit Funding as of September 30, 2023

Page 92



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
Irrigation Water Rate Study 

2024 

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; APPROVING, 
RATIFYING, AND CONFIRMING EXISTING IRRIGATION 
RATES ADOPTED IN PRIOR IRRIGATION RATE 
ADOPTION RESOLUTIONS AND THE PRIOR 
IMPOSITION AND COLLECTION THEREOF; ADOPTING 
AN IRRIGATION QUALITY WATER RATEMAKING 
STUDY; APPROVING NEW IRRIGATION QUALITY 
WATER RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES PURSUANT TO 
SUCH STUDY; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
DISTRICT STAFF TO CONTINUE ESCROWING A 
PORTION OF THE NEW IRRIGATION QUALITY WATER 
RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

  
WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (the “District”) is a local unit of 

special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended (the “Act”) for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating, and/or 
maintaining certain infrastructure and providing certain public services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District provides irrigation quality water to customers within its Unit of 
Development No. 6 (“Unit No. 6”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section (3)(2)(q) of the Act authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, establish, 
and collect rates, fees, rentals, fares, or other charges for the property, facilities and services made 
available, furnished, or to be furnished by the District, and to recover the cost of making or 
authorizing the connection to any District facility or system or installing works or improvements 
on or within District property interests after public hearing thereon; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District previously adopted 
Resolution Nos. 2018-18, 2020-08, 2021-15, and 2023-08 (the “Prior Rate Resolutions”) 
adopting and imposing rates for the District’s provision of irrigation quality water to Unit No. 6 
(hereinafter, the “Existing Rates”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board, at its duly noticed March 9, 2023 regular meeting, authorized 
District staff to advertise a request for proposals for an independent contractor to provide certain 
public utility irrigation rate study services for i) the review of the District’s existing irrigation rate 
structure and currently charged rates; ii) the development of any recommended adjustments or 
alternatives to the District’s existing irrigation rate structure; and iii) the development and 
determination of recommended applicable rates for applicable recommended irrigation rate 
structures; and 

 

Page 96



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the Board, at its duly noticed May 11, 2023 regular meeting, selected 
GovRates, Inc. (“GovRates”) to provide such services to the District, and the District and 
GovRates thereafter entered into that certain Agreement for Public Utility Irrigation Rate Study 
Services, dated May 11, 2023 relative to the provision of same; and 

 
WHEREAS, during the duly noticed October 12, 2023 regular meeting of the Board, 

GovRates presented its preliminary proposed ratemaking methodology with members of the public 
and the Board (the “2024 Rate Study Update Presentation”), during which time GovRates 
received direction from the Board relative to certain matters affecting the finalization of the 
methodology upon which the proposed revised irrigation quality water rates (the “2024 Rates”) 
would be based; and 

 
WHEREAS, during the duly noticed February 16, 2024 special meeting of the Board, 

District staff announced that public presentations would be conducted by District staff 1) on March 
5, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. in the Training Room of the Public Safety Building located at 19955 Preto 
Boulevard, Venice, Florida 34293 regarding an overview of the District’s master irrigation system 
program (the “Master Irrigation System Presentation”), and 2) on March 21, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. 
in the Training Room of the Public Safety Building located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, 
Florida 34293 regarding the proposed 2024 Rates and the methodology therefor (the “2024 Rates 
Public Outreach Meeting Presentation”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Master Irrigation System Presentation was thereafter held by District staff 

on March 5, 2024 at the referenced date, time, and location where members of the public were able 
to attend and participate; and  

 
WHEREAS, during the duly noticed March 14, 2024 regular meeting of the Board, 

District staff announced that the proposed methodology for the 2024 Rates and the 2024 Rates 
therein would be presented for consideration and approval at the District’s April 11, 2024 regular 
meeting during which time a public hearing would be held; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2024 Rates Public Outreach Meeting Presentation was thereafter held by 

District staff on March 21, 2024 at the referenced date, time, and location where members of the 
public were able to attend and participate; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon the conclusion of the 2024 Rate Study Update Presentation, the Master 

Irrigation System Presentation, and the 2024 Rates Public Outreach Meeting Presentation, copies 
of the PowerPoint presentations from each were all promptly posted prominently on the District’s 
website for viewing by members of the public who were not able to physically attend such 
presentations; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the 2024 Rates Public Outreach Meeting Presentation, District 

staff additionally held a series of virtual meetings with homeowners’ and property owners’ 
associations (i.e., the customers that the District provides irrigation quality water service to) in 
order to educate them on the proposed 2024 Rates and the financial impacts to such entities’ 
budgets should the 2024 Rates be approved by the District Board in the manner proposed by 
GovRates at the District’s April 11, 2024 Board meeting and public hearing; and 

 

Page 97



 

3 
 

WHEREAS, the District published a notice of ratemaking public hearing on March 29, 
2024 in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune thirteen (13) days in advance of the Board’s April 11, 2024 
regular meeting during which such public hearing would be held, which notice included 
information regarding the public hearing and proposed 2024 Rates; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District published a notice of regular Board meeting on April 2, 2024 in 

the Sarasota Herald-Tribune nine (9) days in advance of the Board’s April 11, 2024 regular 
meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, GovRates has prepared that certain Irrigation Water Rate Study dated April 

4, 2024 for the District (the “2024 Rate Study”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, which provides a 
methodology for the calculation of, and recommendation for, adoption of the 2024 Rates as set 
forth therein, which was included in the District’s agenda package for its April 11, 2024 Board 
meeting, along with a proposed resolution adopting the 2024 Rate Study and the 2024 Rates among 
other related matters, which agenda package was distributed to members of the public, District 
staff, and the Board and posted on the District website on April 4, 2024, seven (7) days in advance 
of such meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, at the District’s April 11, 2024 regular meeting of the Board, the 2024 Rate 

Study, along with the proposed methodology and the 2024 Rates therein, were presented by 
GovRates, after which a public hearing was held where the Board solicited comments from and 
answered questions of members of the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board accordingly desires to: i) approve, ratify, and confirm the findings 
made and the Existing Rates adopted in the Prior Rate Resolutions as well as the prior imposition 
and collection of the Existing Rates by the District; ii) adopt the 2024 Rate Study; iii) approve the 
2024 Rates as set forth in Exhibit B in conformance with the 2024 Rate Study and the imposition 
thereof commencing July 1, 2024; iv) authorize and direct District staff to continue to escrow the 
portion of the 2024 Rates relating to the well availability fee until there is further direction from 
the Board to continue the remittance of such payments; 1 and v) make such changes to the forgoing 
and provide such other related appropriate direction as to the 2024 Rates and the 2024 Rate Study 
as approved by the District’s Board following its public hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on the matter which has been publicly noticed in 
accordance with the Act, and in reliance on the recommendations of its independent public utility 
irrigation rate consultant, the Board finds that the 2024 Rates are just and equitable having been 
based upon i) the amount of service furnished, and ii) other factors affecting the use of the facilities 
furnished. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 

1 The Board, at its duly noticed April 13, 2023 regular meeting, directed District staff to collect- but escrow and not 
remit- the portion of the Existing Rates relating to the well availability fee that is required to be remitted to The Ranch 
Land Operations, LLP and Thomas Ranch Intangibles, LLP pursuant to that certain Irrigation Water Supply 
Agreement dated December 4, 2018, as amended (the “Groundwater Supply Agreement”), until there is further 
direction from the Board to continue the remittance of such payments. 

Page 98



 

4 
 

 SECTION 1.  The Board incorporates the recitals hereinabove stated. 
 

SECTION 2. The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 
 (a)  The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under 
and pursuant to the Act for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating, and/or 
maintaining certain infrastructure and providing certain public services. 

 
 (b)  The District provides irrigation quality water to customers within the District’s Unit 
No. 6 through its central irrigation distribution system. 

 
 (c)  Section (3)(2)(q) of the Act authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, establish, and 
collect rates, fees, rentals, fares, or other charges for the property, facilities and services made 
available, furnished, or to be furnished by the District, and to recover the cost of making or 
authorizing the connection to any District facility or system or installing works or improvements 
on or within District property interests after public hearing thereon. 
  
 (d)  The Board previously adopted the Prior Rate Resolutions, after public hearing thereon, 
in conformance with the Act. 

 
 (e)  After public hearing, the Board finds that: i) the approval, ratification, and confirmation 
of the findings made and the Existing Rates adopted in the Prior Rate Resolutions as well as the 
prior imposition and collection of the Existing Rates by the District; ii) the adoption of the 2024 
Rate Study attached hereto as Exhibit A; iii) the approval of the 2024 Rates as set forth in Exhibit 
B in conformance with the 2024 Rate Study and the imposition thereof commencing July 1, 2024; 
and iv) the authorization of and direction to District staff to continue to escrow of the portion of 
the 2024 Rates relating to the well availability fee until there is further direction from the Board to 
continue the remittance of such payments, all of which are related to the provision of irrigation 
quality water to customers within the District, is necessary in order to provide the revenues 
necessary for funding the expenses of the District with respect to its provision of irrigation quality 
water to such customers, and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners, and residents. 
 

SECTION 3.  
 
(a)  The Board hereby approves, ratifies, and confirms the findings made and the Existing 

Rates adopted in the Prior Rate Resolutions and the prior imposition and collection of such rates 
by the District in good faith in accordance therewith. 

 
(b) The Board hereby approves and confirms the 2024 Rate Study attached hereto as 

Exhibit A. 
 
(c) The Board hereby approves and confirms the 2024 Rates set forth in Exhibit B and 

authorizes the imposition of the 2024 Rates by District staff commencing July 1, 2024. 
 
(d)  The Board hereby authorizes and directs District staff to continue to escrow the portion 

of the 2024 Rates relating to the well availability fee until there is further action from the Board 
directing District staff to continue the remittance of such payments in accordance with the 
requirements of the Groundwater Supply Agreement. 

Page 99



 

5 
 

 
 SECTION 4. The 2024 Rates shall replace the Existing Rates effective July 1, 2024. 
 

SECTION 5.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 6.  This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES 
       IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
  
  
 
Exhibit A: 2024 Rate Study  
Exhibit B: Schedule of the 2024 Rates 
  

Page 100



 

 
 

Exhibit A 
 

2024 Rate Study 
 
 

Page 101



 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Schedule of the 2024 Rates 
 
 
 

Rates per 1 Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)1 Tier 1 Tier 25 
Monthly Base Charge Rate2 $2.35 n/a 
Well Availability Rate3 $4.17 n/a 
   
Volumetric Rate per 1,000 gallons 
Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate4 $0.25 n/a 
Volumetric Usage Rate2 

- Customers with Private Irrigation Pumps $0.68 $2.04 
- All Other Customers $0.88 $2.64 

 

1 Common area irrigation water use shall be billed at the effective Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate per 1,000 gallons plus the 
effective Tier 1 Volumetric Rate per 1,000 gallons for All Other Customers as referenced in the above table (i.e., customers without 
private irrigation pumps). For the purposes of irrigation water billing, common areas shall include District-owned roadway medians, 
between sidewalk and curb, entrance ways, any buffer areas, any common amenity such as a dog park, and any other areas 
determined by the Board. 
 

2   In the absence of a formal study recommendation or action by the Board, the Monthly Base Charge Rate and the Volumetric 
Usage Rate shall be automatically increased effective October 1st of each fiscal year. The percentage increase shall be the 
percentage increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Tampa-St. Petersburg-Clearwater, Florida area, all items, all 
urban consumers, not seasonally adjusted (Series ID: CUURS35DSA0 accessed via https://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/srgate) from 
January of the preceding calendar year to January of the current calendar year as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the 
United States Department of Labor. The calculated rates shall be rounded up to the nearest cent. The first increases under these 
provisions, if any, shall become effective on October 1, 2025.  
 
3  Pursuant to the Irrigation Water Supply Agreement, dated December 4, 2018, as amended, the Well Availability Rate is $4.17 as 
of March 2024 and may be increased at the beginning of each fiscal year by an amount not to exceed the greater of i) 5.5% (i.e., 
the 10-year average of the United States CPI-Water and Sewerage Maintenance Series at the time of adoption of these rates); or ii) 
the July-to-July change in the United States CPI-Water and Sewerage Maintenance Series. 
 

4  The Purchased Reclaimed Water Rate shall be automatically increased based on the percentage increase, if any, in the City of 
North Port reclaimed water rate charged to the District (which is $0.31/1,000 gallons as of March 2024). The calculated rates shall 
be rounded up to the nearest cent. 
 

5  To promote water conservation, Tier 2 volumetric rates are priced at three (3) times Tier 1 volumetric rates. Tier 2 volumetric 
rates will apply for those customers exceeding 1.5 times their monthly irrigation allocation (hereinafter the “Monthly Allocation”) 
based on AGMOD Demand Calculations, as determined by the District Manager or their designee. The Monthly Allocation shall 
be calculated by multiplying the AGMOD Reserved Annual Average Daily Quantity  (expressed in gallons per day) by the number 
of days in a given month. Monthly Allocations will accommodate applicable grow-in practices for new construction, as determined 
to be appropriate by the District Manager or their designee. Tier 2 rates will only be applied to usage that exceeds the Monthly 
Allocation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

[Continued on Next Page] 
 
 

Page 102



 

 
 

 
 

ERUs Per Customer Class 
Product Type Metric ERU 
Single-Family1 Residential Unit 1 unit 1 
Multi-Family2 Residential Unit 1 unit .33 
Commercial Irrigable Acres3 .075 irrigable acres 1 
Recreational Irrigable Acres4 .075 irrigable acres 1 

 
1 A single-family unit is defined as a building containing not more than two (2) dwellings. 
2 A multi-family unit is defined as a building containing more than two (2) dwellings. 
3 Irrigable acreage for commercial property is calculated based on 16% of the net developable area (i.e. gross land area less major 
roadway right-of-way and wetland areas) for each parcel. 
4 Irrigable acreage for recreational property (i.e. golf courses, parks, athletic facilities, etc.) is calculated based on an estimate of 
the irrigable area for the property as conducted by a Professional Engineer. 
 

Page 103



AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT AND A.M.C. CONTRACTING, INC. FOR IRRIGATION CONNECTION 

INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made entered into this _____ day of 
____________ 2024, by and between: 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended, and located in the City of North Port, Florida and unincorporated 
Sarasota County, Florida, with a mailing address of 2501 Burns Road, Suite A, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the “District”); and 
 
A.M.C. CONTRACTING, INC., a Florida corporation, with a mailing address of 5656 
Sawyer Circle, Sarasota, Florida 34233 (“Contractor” and, together with the 
District, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining 
certain public infrastructure improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide the 
materials, labor, items, and tools necessary to render the irrigation connection infrastructure 
construction services, all as more particularly described and identified in Exhibit A (the 
“Services”), which is incorporated herein by this reference; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is qualified, willing and able to serve as an 
irrigation connection infrastructure construction services contractor and has agreed to perform the 
Services for the District; 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
          

SECTION 1. RECITALS.   The recitals so stated above are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

Page 104



2 
 

 SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES; TERM.     
 
A. Contractor agrees to provide all materials, labor, items and tools necessary to 
perform the Services, as described in Exhibit A.  
 
B. Services shall be completed within forty (40) days, unless an extension is granted 
in writing by the District, in its sole discretion.  Time is of the essence with respect to the 
Services.  District may terminate this Agreement or any part thereof if such performance 
is not in material accordance with the specifications of this Agreement, including the 
schedule.  Contractor shall indemnify the District for all loss and damage of whatever 
nature caused by such delay or failure, excepting only delays for causes beyond 
Contractor’s reasonable control.  
 
C.  Contractor agrees to perform the Services to the satisfaction of the District, in a 
first-class and workmanlike manner, and using the highest level of professional skill, care 
and diligence. Contractor shall perform the Services in conformity with accepted standards 
of safety and the District’s specifications as may be promulgated by the District from time 
to time. 
 
D. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. While 
providing the Services, Contractor shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff 
shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure 
completion of the Services.  
 
E. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to 
this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  Contractor shall use all 
due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage.  
Contractor agrees to commence repairs for any damage resulting from Contractor’s 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours, and Contractor agrees to complete such 
repairs within a reasonable amount of time. 
 
F. Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of 
waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under the Agreement. At completion of 
the Services, Contractor shall remove from the site waste materials, rubbish, tools, 
construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials. If Contractor fails to clean up as 
provided herein, the District may do so, and the cost thereof shall be charged to Contractor. 

 
SECTION 3. COMPENSATION, PAYMENT, AND RETAINAGE.   

 
A. For completion of the Services as identified in Exhibit A, the District shall pay 
Contractor One Hundred Fifty Eight Thousand One Hundred Fifty Three Dollars and Zero 
Cents ($158,153.00). This compensation includes all materials, labor, items and tools as 
set forth in Exhibit A.  
 

Page 105



3 
 

B. If the District should desire additional work or services, Contractor agrees to 
negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services.  Upon successful 
negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, or change order(s) 
to this Agreement.  Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed additional work or 
services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing. 

 
 C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to 

Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and require 
evidence, in the form of lien releases or partial waivers of lien, to be submitted to the 
District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require 
that Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, 
the District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, 
evidence from Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of 
Contractor, as to services to the District, has been paid and that Contractor has met all of 
the obligations with regard to the  withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security 
payments, Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and 
similar payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
SECTION 4. WARRANTY; DAMAGE TO PROPERTY.  In addition to all manufacturer 

warranties for materials purchased for purposes of this Agreement, and any other warranties as set 
forth in Exhibit A, all Services provided by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
warranted for one (1) year from the date of acceptance of the Services by the District or such other 
term as described in Exhibit A, whichever is greater.  Contractor shall remedy defective Services 
to the District’s satisfaction and at the District’s discretion.  Neither final acceptance of the 
Services, nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of the Agreement shall relieve Contractor 
of responsibility for defective or deficient Services.  If any of the Services are found to be 
defective, deficient, or not in accordance with the Agreement, Contractor shall correct it promptly 
after receipt of a written notice from the District and correct and pay for any other damage resulting 
therefrom to District property or the property of landowners within the District.  
 
 SECTION 5. INSURANCE. 
 

A. Contractor, and any of its subcontractors, shall, at its own expense, maintain 
insurance during the performance of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of 
liability not less than the following:  

  Workers’ Compensation    statutory 
 
  General Liability       
    Bodily Injury (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
    Property Damage (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
 
  Automobile Liability (if applicable)    
     Bodily Injury and Property Damage   $1,000,000 
 

B. The District, its agents, staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as an 
additional insured. Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance 

Page 106



4 
 

evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the 
District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the 
insurance coverages, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior 
written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance 
carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a 
Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 

C. If Contractor, or its subcontractors, as applicable, fails to have secured and 
maintained the required insurance, the District has the right (without any obligation to do 
so, however), to secure such required insurance in which event Contractor shall pay the 
cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may 
be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 

 SECTION 6. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 
supervisors, officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or 
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, 
interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or 
damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in 
connection with the Services to be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its 
employees and agents in connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, 
arbitration, appellate, or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.   
 
B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, back pay awards, 
court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, 
paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), 
any interest, all as actually incurred. 

 
 SECTION 7. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability 
as set forth in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  

 
SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. Contractor shall 

keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) days 
of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged 
violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof 
with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of Contractor or 
any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, 
conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable to provision of 
services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) days after receipt 
of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, 
the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon the giving of 

Page 107



5 
 

notice of termination. 
 

SECTION 9.  LIENS AND CLAIMS.  Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all 
labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement.  
Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and 
claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of Contractor’s 
performance under this Agreement, and Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim or 
lien.  In the event that Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) business 
days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies 
available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 10. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 11.  SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 12. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing ten (10) days’ written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement. Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for 
cause by providing written notice of termination to Contractor. The District shall provide ten (10) 
days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective 
termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against 
Contractor.   

 
SECTION 13. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any 

governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All 
other permits or licenses necessary for Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by Contractor. 

 
 SECTION 14.   ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 

Page 108



6 
 

Agreement, Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither Contractor nor 
employees of Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or 
application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more 
of such laws with respect to employees of Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or 
implied, on behalf of the District and Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District 
as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 17. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or 
Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute 
resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 
 SECTION 18. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 19. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties. 

 
SECTION 20.  AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 

authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 SECTION 21. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notice” or “Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   West Villages Improvement District 
      2501 Burns Road, Suite A 
      Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
      Attn:  District Manager 
 
  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn:  District Counsel 
 

B. If to Contractor:  A.M.C. Contracting, Inc. 
     5656 Sawyer Circle 

Page 109



7 
 

     Sarasota, Florida 34233 
      Attn: ____________________ 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 22. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 

the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
 SECTION 23. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida.  Each Party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related 
to this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Sarasota County, 
Florida. 

 
 SECTION 24. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor understands and agrees that all documents 
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including but not limited to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is William Crosley 
(“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, 
Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public 
records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
the contract term if Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the 
District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all  public 
records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable  
requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records are 

Page 110



8 
 

transferred by Contractor, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word 
or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (561) 630-4922, 
WCROSLEY@SDSINC.ORG, 2501A BURNS ROAD, PALM 
BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410.  

 

 SECTION 25. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

SECTION 26. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 

 
SECTION 27. COUNTERPARTS.  This instrument may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment 
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document 
to physically form one document. 

 
SECTION 28. E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform 

all applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 
2021, to the extent required by Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United 
States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if 
there is a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida 

Statutes. 
 

If the Contractor anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for the Work, 
Contractor will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an affidavit from 
the subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that 
the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. 
Contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the agreement and provide a 
copy to the District upon request.  
 

Page 111



9 
 

In the event that the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly 
violated Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Contractor has otherwise complied with its 
obligations hereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to 
immediately terminate the agreement with the subcontractor upon notice from the District. Further, 
absent such notification from the District, the Contractor or any subcontractor who has a good faith 
belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1), 
Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. 
 

By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has 
terminated a contract with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the 
year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 29. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES.   The Contractor 

agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general 
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate 
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes . 

 
SECTION 30.  SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES STATEMENT.   Contractor certifies it: (i) is not 

in violation of Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, (ii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List; (iii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List; (iv) does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria; (v) is not 
on the on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List; and (vi) is not participating in a 
boycott of Israel.  If the Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement with regards to the 
prior sentence, has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List, has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, and/or 
has engaged in a boycott of Israel, the District may immediately terminate this Agreement. 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 

  

Page 112



Page 113



11 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Scope of Services  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 114



12 
 

 

 

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



(1)
(2)

(3) (4)

ERU
ERU

Page 118



ERU

Florida Statutes F.S.

Page 119



ERUs

ERUs

ERUs

ERUs
ERUs

ERU
ERUs

Page 120



Page 121



7

Page 122



8

Page 123



9

Page 124



10

Page 125



11

Page 126



12

Page 127



Page 128



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-14 
 

UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10, SERIES 2024 BONDS 
 

(ASSESSMENT AREA ONE PROJECT) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SETTING FORTH THE SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE DISTRICT’S CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS (UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10), 
SERIES 2024 (ASSESSMENT AREA ONE); CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT’S 
PROVISION OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS AND 
CONFIRMING A MASTER ENGINEER’S REPORT; CONFIRMING AND 
ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT REPORT; CONFIRMING, 
ALLOCATING AND AUTHORIZING THE COLLECTION OF SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SECURING SERIES 2024 BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
SUPPLEMENT TO THE IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK; PROVIDING FOR 
THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF SERIES 2024 SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) has previously indicated 
its intention to undertake, install, establish, construct or acquire certain public infrastructure 
improvements within Unit of Development No. 10 within the District (“Unit No. 10”) and to 
finance such improvements through the imposition of special assessments on benefitted property 
within Unit No. 10 and the issuance of bonds; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) has previously adopted, after 
notice and public hearing, Resolution 2024-06, relating to the imposition, levy, collection and 
enforcement of such special assessments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with the terms of Resolution 2024-06, this 
Resolution shall set forth the terms of bonds actually issued by the District, and apply the adopted 
special assessment methodology to the actual scope of the project to be completed with a series of 
bonds and the terms of the bond issue; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 27, 2024, the District entered into a Bond Purchase Contract 
whereby it agreed to sell its $19,280,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (Unit of 
Development No. 10), Series 2024 (Assessment Area One) (the “Series 2024 Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Resolution 2024-06, the District desires to 
set forth the particular terms of the sale of the Series 2024 Bonds and confirm the lien of the special 
assessments securing the Series 2024 Bonds (the “Series 2024 Assessments”). 
 

Page 129



 

2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 
pursuant to the provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, 
Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, and Resolution 2024-06. 
 
 SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The Board of Supervisors of the West Villages Improvement 
District hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 
 (a) On February 16, 2024, the District, after due notice and public hearing, adopted 
Resolution 2024-06, which, among other things, equalized, approved, confirmed and levied special 
assessments on property within Unit No. 10 benefitting from the infrastructure improvements 
authorized by the District.  That Resolution provided that as each series of bonds was issued to 
fund all or any portion of the District’s infrastructure improvements within Unit No. 10, a 
supplemental resolution would be adopted to set forth the specific terms of the bonds and certifying 
the amount of the lien of the special assessments securing any portion of the bonds, including 
interest, costs of issuance, and the number of payments due, the True-Up amounts and the 
application of receipt of True-Up proceeds. 
 
 (b) The final Unit of Development No. 10 Master Engineer’s Report, dated January 11, 
2024, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A (the “Engineer’s Report”), identifies and describes 
the presently expected components of the master and Phase 1 neighborhood improvements to be 
financed with the Series 2024 Bonds (the “Series 2024 Improvements”).  The District hereby 
confirms that the Series 2024 Improvements serve a proper, essential and valid public purpose.  
The Engineer’s Report is hereby confirmed.  The District ratifies its use in connection with the 
sale of the Series 2024 Bonds.  
 
 (c) The final First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report, Unit of 
Development No. 10 (Series 2024 Bonds), dated March 27, 2024, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit B (the “Supplemental Assessment Report”), applies the adopted Master Special 
Assessment Methodology Report, Unit of Development No. 10, dated January 11, 2024, (the 
“Master Assessment Report”) to the actual terms of the Series 2024 Bonds.  The Supplemental 
Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and confirmed.  The District ratifies its use in 
connection with the sale of the Series 2024 Bonds.  
 
 (d) The Series 2024 Improvements will specially benefit all of the developable, assessable 
acreage within “Assessment Area One” within Unit No. 10, as set forth in the Supplemental 
Assessment Report.  It is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the portion of the costs of the 
Series 2024 Improvements financed with the Series 2024 Bonds to such specially benefited 
properties within the District as set forth in Resolution 2024-06 and this Resolution.   
 

Page 130



 

3 
 

 SECTION 3.  CONFIRMATION OF MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN FOR 
SERIES 2024 BONDS.  As provided in Resolution 2024-06, this Resolution is intended to set 
forth the terms of the Series 2024 Bonds and the final amount of the lien of the special assessments 
securing those bonds. 
 
 The Series 2024 Bonds, in a par amount of $19,280,000 shall bear such rates of interest 
and maturity as shown on Exhibit C attached hereto.  The final payment on the Series 2024 Bonds 
shall be due on May 1, 2053.  The sources and uses of funds of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be as 
set forth in Exhibit D.  The debt service due on the Series 2024 Bonds is set forth on Exhibit E 
attached hereto.  The lien of the special assessments securing the Series 2024 Bonds on all 
assessable, developable land within Assessment Area One within Unit No. 10 shall be the principal 
amount due on the Series 2024 Bonds, together with accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and 
together with the amount by which annual assessments are grossed up to include early payment 
discounts required by law and costs of collection. 
 
 SECTION 4.  ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS SECURING SERIES 2024 
BONDS.  
 
 (a)  The special assessments for the Series 2024 Bonds shall be allocated in accordance 
with Exhibit B which allocation shall initially be distributed  to 589 residential dwelling units 
consisting one hundred thirty-two (132) coach homes, thirty-seven (37) townhomes, eighty-eight 
(88) 50’ lots, two hundred eighty-seven (287) 65’ lots, and forty-five (45) 75’ lots. The 
Supplemental Assessment Report is consistent with the District’s Master Assessment 
Methodology. The Supplemental Assessment Report, considered herein, reflects the actual terms 
of the issuance of the District’s Series 2024 Bonds.  The estimated costs of collection of the special 
assessments for the Series 2024 Bonds are as set forth in the Supplemental Assessment Report.  
 
 (b)  The lien of the special assessments securing the Series 2024 Bonds includes all 
developable, assessable land within Assessment Area One within Unit No. 10 and as such land is 
ultimately defined and set forth in plats or other designations of developable acreage.  To the extent 
land is added to Assessment Area One, the District may, by supplemental resolution, determine 
such land to be benefited by the Series 2024 Improvements and reallocate the special assessments 
securing the Series 2024 Bonds and impose special assessments on the newly added and benefited 
property. 
 
 (c)  Taking into account capitalized interest and earnings on certain funds and accounts as 
set forth in the Master Trust Indenture and First Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of 
April 1, 2024, the District shall begin annual collection of special assessments for the Series 2024 
Bonds debt service payments using the methods available to it by law.  Debt service payments and 
semi-annual installments of interest are reflected on Exhibit E.   
 
 (d)  The District hereby certifies the special assessments for collection and directs staff to 
take all actions necessary to meet the time and other deadlines imposed by Sarasota County for 
collection and other Florida law.  The District intends, to the extent possible and subject to entering 

Page 131



 

4 
 

into the appropriate agreements with the Sarasota County Tax Collector and Sarasota County 
Property Appraiser, to collect the Series 2024 Assessments using the Uniform Method in Chapter 
197, Florida Statutes.  The District Manager shall prepare or cause to be prepared each year a tax 
roll for purposes of effecting the collection of the special assessments and present same to the 
District Board as required by law.  The District Manager is further directed and authorized to take 
all actions necessary to collect any prepayments of debt as and when due.  
 
 SECTION 5.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.  Pursuant to Resolution 
2024-06, there may be required from time to time certain True-Up payments.  As lands are 
replatted or site plans are approved within Assessment Area One, the special assessments securing 
the Series 2024 Bonds shall be allocated to the replatted lands as set forth in Resolution 2024-06, 
this Resolution, and the Supplemental Assessment Report, including, without limitation, the 
application of the True-Up process set forth in Section 8 of Resolution 2024-06.  Based on the 
final par amount of $19,280,000 in Series 2024 Bonds, the True-Up calculations will be made in 
accordance with the process set forth in the Supplemental Assessment Report.  The District shall 
apply all True-Up payments related to the Series 2024 Bonds only to the credit of the Series 2024 
Bonds.  All True-Up payments, as well as all other prepayments of assessments, shall be deposited 
into the accounts specified in the First Supplemental Trust Indenture governing the Series 2024 
Bonds. 
 
 SECTION 6.  IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK.  Immediately following the adoption of 
this Resolution these special assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of 
the Board of the District in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.  The special assessment or 
assessments against each respective parcel shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first 
lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, 
district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and 
claims. 
 

SECTION 7. OTHER PROVISIONS REMAIN IN EFFECT.  This Resolution is 
intended to supplement Resolution 2024-06, which remains in full force and effect. This 
Resolution and Resolution 2024-06 shall be construed to the maximum extent possible to give full 
force and effect to the provisions of each resolution.  All District resolutions or parts thereof in 
actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 

 
 SECTION 8.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to 
record a Notice of Unit of Development No. 10 Series 2024 Special Assessments securing the 
Series 2024 Bonds in the Official Records of Sarasota County, Florida, or such other instrument 
evidencing the actions taken by the District. 
 
 SECTION 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that 
such other section or part of a section of this resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon 
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

Page 132



 

5 
 

 
 SECTION 10.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 
adoption. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this 11th day of April 2024. 

 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES  

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
______________________________ ________________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:   Unit of Development No. 10 Master Engineer’s Report, dated January 11, 2024 
Exhibit B:   First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report, Unit of Development 

No. 10, dated March 27, 2024 
Exhibit C:   Maturities and Coupon of Series 2024 Bonds 
Exhibit D:   Sources and Uses of Funds for Series 2024 Bonds 
Exhibit E:   Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Series 2024 Bonds 

Page 133



 

 

Exhibit A 
Master Engineers Report 

 
 
 

Page 134



 

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
Unit of Development No. 10 
Master E Report 

JANUARY 11, 2024 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc.  
2201 Cantu Court  
Suite 107  
Sarasota, Florida   
Phone: 813.327.7044  
Contact: Giacomo Licari 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District  
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293  
Phone: 941.244.2703    

Page 135



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 10 
January 11, 2024 

  1 
 

 

Master  

Table of Contents 

1. GENERAL 2 

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 2 

3. LANDS IN UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10 2 

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 2 

4.1 Topography 2 

4.2 Soil and Vegetation 2 

4.3 Land Use and Zoning 3 

5. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS 3 

5.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 3 

5.2 Permitting 3 

5.3 Estimated Costs of Improvements 5 

6. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 5 

6.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 6 

7. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 6 

 6 

 

Table of Tables 

Table 5.1 Permitting Status .................................................................................... 4 

Table 5.2 Estimated Costs of Improvements ......................................................... 5 

Table of Exhibits 

Unit 10 Sketch & Legal Description ........................................................... Exhibit A 

Aerial Location Map ................................................................................... Exhibit B 

Page 136



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 10 
January 11, 2024 

  2 
 

 

1. GENERAL 

-456, 
Laws of Florida, 
Chapter 298, Florida Statutes and other Florida law. WVID was created to construct, operate, and 
maintain public works and utilities including water, sewer, drainage, irrigation, water management, parks, 
recreational facilities, roadway, or related activities, as more particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, 
Laws of Florida. 

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of this Master Engineer s Report ( Report ) is to present the nature and extent of the 
improvements that may be constructed or acquired by WVID for and on behalf of the Unit of Development 
No. 10  No. 10  ). These improvements will thereafter be owned, operated, and/or 
maintained by either WVID or another legally empowered governmental entity. 

The text of this Report generally describes the existing land within Unit No. 10 and the proposed 
improvements and recommendations. This Report is not intended to be used for exact representation or 
for construction purposes since detailed construction documents for all of the proposed improvements 
have not yet been finalized. 

3. LANDS IN UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 10 

An Aerial Location Map showing the location of Unit No. 10 is included as Exhibit B. The legal 
description(s) and sketch(es) are included as Exhibit A and reflect the lands included in Unit No. 10. 
These lands total approximately 878.3 acres. 

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

4.1 Topography 
The area within Unit No. 10 is relatively flat with site elevations ranging from approximately nine (9) feet to 
fifteen (15) feet. The land within Unit No. 10 is primarily undeveloped pasture and rangelands, upland 
pine flatwood, and wetlands. 

4.2 Soil and Vegetation 
Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the predominant surficial soil types within Unit No. 
10 are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands, SCD Soils No. 22, Holopaw fine 
sand, SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine Sand, and Pople Fine Sands. SCS Soil No. 10 is a nearly level, 
poorly drained soil that can be made up entirely of EauGallie and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar 
soils, or a combination of EauGallie, Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface 
layer of black fine sand with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 inches. The 
surface layer of the Myakka soil is typically dark grayish brown fine sand about 6 inches thick while the 
subsurface layer is light gray fine sand about 18 inches thick. Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly 
drained soil. Typically, the surface and subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 
inches thick. The subsoil consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a lower layer of 
12 inches of mottled, light brownish gray fine sandy loam. Pople Fine Sand is nearly level, poorly drained 
soil on low hammocks and in poorly defined drainageways and broad sloughs. Typically, the surface layer 
is very dark grayish brown fine sand approximately four (4) inches thick. The subsurface layer is light 
brownish gray fine sand approximately three (3) inches thick. The subsoil is brown and brownish yellow 
fine sand in the upper 21-inches and gray fine sandy loam in the lower 28-inches. 

The property within Unit No. 10 currently consists of various vegetative communities comprised of both 
upland and wetland habitats. Several of the vegetation communities have been modified as a result of 
onsite agricultural activities including ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically extensive 
open forests or wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or have been cleared for cattle 

Page 137



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 10 
January 11, 2024 

  3 
 

 

grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching has also altered the hydrology of several of the 
wetland systems onsite, particularly where the ditches bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. 

4.3 Land Use and Zoning 
Unit No. 10 is locat Unit 
No. 10 is currently being designed and prepared for development review and approval with the City. It is 
expected that the City will approve uses compatible with the adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
( CLUP ). 

5. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS 

5.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 
WVID has formed Unit No. 10 to finance infrastructure design and construction to provide public 
infrastructure for Unit No. 10 and its ultimate property owners. 

The improvements for Unit No. 10 will be consistent with the CLUP and implementing ordinances, 
studies, plans, and may include: 

 Public roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets; 
 Drainage and stormwater improvements; 
 Water and sewer facilities; 
 Irrigation facilities; 
 Public roadway landscape, lighting, signage, and furnishings; 
 Entry features; and 
 Consulting and contingencies.  

Access to the Project will be provided via River Road, US 41, West Villages Parkway, Preto Boulevard, 
Manasota Beach Road, and Playmore Drive. Potable water and sanitary sewer services will be provided 
by the City. 

5.2 Permitting 
Required permits, approved and proposed, are summarized in Table 5.1. It is our opinion that there are 
no technical reasons existing at this time that would prohibit the permitting and construction of the 
planned infrastructure, subject to continued compliance with agency criteria and conditions of the already 
approved plans and permits.  

Permits necessary to complete the Project have either been obtained as described below, or in our 
opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, subject to reasonable, normal, and customary 
permit conditions. 

The remainder of this page has been left intentionally blank. 

  

Page 138



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 10 
January 11, 2024 

  4 
 

 

Table 5.1 Permitting Status 

Permitting Status 

PERMIT PERMIT NUMBERS DATE APPROVED 
Manasota Beach Rd  From Preto Boulevard to River Road, 
including sections of Preto Boulevard and West Villages 
Parkway 

INF 20-036 06/16/2020 

Wastewater Treatment Plant FDEP FLA B07114-001-DWIR 
MAS 17-168 

3/17/2020 

Water Treatment Plant FDEP FLA 984841-001-DWIP 09/20/2017 

Parks/Government TBD TBD 

Various Water Management Improvements INF-15-153/ 
SCP-15-122 

10/04/2016 

Manasota Beach Rd. Extension 

    SWFWMD ERP 864613 / 43032522.114 06/26/2023 

    CONP INF - Construction Permit INF-23-034 06/16/2023 

    CONP SCP - Construction Permit   SCP-23-035 06/16/2023 

    FDEP Water Permit 0208589-255-DSGP   05/23/2023 

    FDEP Wastewater Permit CS58-435524   06/01/2023 

Preto Boulevard South Extension   

     SWFWMD ERP 857117 / 43032522.102 01/10/2023 

    CONP INF - Construction Permit INF-22-222 01/28/2023 

    CONP SCP - Construction Permit   SCP-22-224 01/28/2023 

    FDEP Water Permit 0208589-252-DSGP  03/31/2023 

    FDEP Wastewater Permit CS58-432586    

Village I Neighborhood Improvements Phase 1   

     SWFWMD ERP - Mass Grading  867347 / 43032522.112 10/04/2023 

     CONP INF - Construction Permit  INF-23-067 08/17/2023 

     CONP SCP - Construction Permit   SCP-23-068 08/17/2023 

     SWFWMD ERP - Construction Plans 867347 / 43032522.112 10/04/2023 

      FDEP Water Permit 0208589-265-DGSP 10/04/2023 

     FDEP Wastewater Permit CS58-440364 10/16/2023 

Village I Neighborhood Improvements Phase 2   

     SWFWMD ERP - Mass Grading  867347 / 43032522.112 10/04/2023 

    CONP Mass Grading INF Permit TBD TBD 

    CONP INF - Construction Permit TBD TBD 

    SWFWMD ERP - Construction Plans TBD TBD 

    FDEP Water Permit TBD TBD 

    FDEP Wastewater Permit TBD TBD 

Page 139



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 10 
January 11, 2024 

  5 
 

 

5.3 Estimated Costs of Improvements 
Table 5.2 lists the components of the planned improvements for Unit No. 10, together with their estimated 
costs of design and construction. The table also includes an estimate of administrative, consulting, 
engineering, legal and other fees, and contingencies associated with the improvements. 

Table 5.2 Estimated Costs of Improvements 

Note 1  Roadway costs include roads, potable water, sanitary sewer, irrigation, drainage, landscaping, and street lighting.  

Note 2  Costs of the wastewater treatment plant and water treatment plant are Unit No. 10  

 

Note 3  Costs are rounded to the nearest $1 million.  

Estimated Costs of Improvements (2023 Dollars) 

IMPROVEMENTS ESTIMATED COSTS 
Collector and Arterial Roads (See Note 1) $21,100,000.00 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share  See Notes 2 
and 3) 

$6,700,000.00 

Water Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share  See Notes 2 and 3) $4,800,000.00 

Master Water Management $200,000.00 

Parks/Government $200,000.00 

Consultants and Administration (15%)  $5,000,000.00 

Subtotal  $38,000,000.00 

Village I Phase 1 Neighborhood Improvements  

      Earthwork $10,700,000.00 

     Drainage and Stormwater $8,000,000.00 

     Potable Water  $2,800,000.00 

     Wastewater  $4,500,000.00 

     Master Irrigation  $1,600,000.00 

     Consultants and Administration (15%)  $4,100,000.00 

Subtotal $31,700,000.00 

Village I Phase 2 Neighborhood Improvements  

    Earthwork $9,800,000.00 

    Drainage and Stormwater $7,200,000.00 

    Potable Water $2,600,000.00 

   Wastewater $4,100,000.00 

   Master Irrigation $1,400,000.00 

  Consultants and Administration (15%) $3,800,000.00 

Subtotal $28,900,000.00 

Total $98,600,000.00 

  

Page 140



West Villages Improvement District 
Unit of Development No. 10
January 11, 2024

6

6. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

6.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements
Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the Project will include the following:

1. Maintenance and operation of the potable water and sanitary sewer systems will be the
responsibility of the City;

2. Maintenance and operation of the stormwater management system will be the 
responsibility of the WVID;

3. Maintenance and operation of the collector and arterial roadway, sidewalk, and 
landscaping improvements will be the responsibility of WVID, City, or FDOT depending 
on the ownership of the road; and

4. Maintenance of parks or government projects will be the responsibility of the WVID or 
City.

7. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The improvements, as outlined, are necessary for the functional development of the Project, which is 
being designed in accordance with current governmental regulatory requirements. The Project will serve 
its intended function provided the construction is in substantial compliance with the design. Items of 
construction for the Project are based upon current development plans.

8.

It is our professional opinion that the infrastructure costs provided herein for the WVID improvements for 
the Project are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure described herein and that 
these infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to the WVID. These estimated costs are 
based upon prices currently being experienced for similar items of work in southwest Florida and 
expected inflation in the future. Actual costs may vary based on final engineering, planning, and 
approvals from regulatory agencies.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Master E Report for the 
WVID.

Giacomo Licari, P.E.
Florida Registration No. 72415

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



 

 

Exhibit B 
First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report, Series 2024 Bonds, dated 

March 27, 2024 
 

Page 154



 

 

Exhibit C 
Maturities and Coupon of Series 2024 Bonds 

 

 
 

Page 155



 

 

Exhibit D 
Sources and Uses of Funds for Series 2024 Bonds 

 

 

 
 

Page 156



 

 

Exhibit E 
Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Series 2024 Bonds 

 

Page 157



 

 

 
 

Page 158



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 159


	West Villages Improvement District - April 11, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Attorney-Client Session Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Discussion Regarding Public Decorum at Board Meetings
	Approval of Minutes
	March 11, 2024 Contractor Prequalification for Construction and Maintenance Services 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

	March 14, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

	Attorney-Client Session Relative to Litigation
	General District Matters
	Consider Resolution 2024-09 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Luczynski
	Consider Resolution 2024-10 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Lewis
	Consider Resolution 2024-11 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Masney
	Consider Resolution 2024-12 – Adopting Defense and Indemnification – Supervisor Buckley
	Receive Correspondence from Englewood Water District

	Unit of Development 1
	Consider Approval of Change Order No. 7 between the District and the DeMoya, Inc. for Wellen Park Blvd. Roundabout and US 41/State Road 45 Improvement Project

	Consider Approval of Change Order No. 8 between the District and the DeMoya, Inc. for Wellen Park Blvd. Roundabout and US 41/State Road 45 Improvement Project 

	Consider Approval of Fifth Amendment to Agreement between the District and Brightview Landscape Services, Inc. Regarding the Provision of Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services 


	Unit of Development 3
	Presentation by GovRates Regarding Irrigation Water Rate Study
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution 2024-13 – Setting Rate


	Unit of Development 6
	Consider Approval of Agreement with AMC Contracting, Inc. for Irrigation Connection
Infrastructure Construction Services


	Unit of Development 10
	Consider Approval of Supplemental Assessment Methodology
	Consider Resolution 2024-14 – Supplemental Assessment Resolution





